
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Andy Booth 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74325 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Angela Brogden 
Tel: 24 74553 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Monday, 10th December, 2012 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson (Chair) - Adel and Wharfedale; 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley; 

N Buckley - Alwoodley; 

P Davey - City and Hunslet; 

R Grahame - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

M Harland - Kippax and Methley; 

P Harrand - Alwoodley; 

G Hyde - Killingbeck and Seacroft; 

J Jarosz - Pudsey; 

S Lay - Otley and Yeadon; 

K Mitchell - Temple Newsam; 

N Walshaw - Headingley; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

           No exempt items on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 12 NOVEMBER 2012 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 12 November 2012 
 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  SAFER LEEDS COMMUNITY SAFETY 
BUSINESS PLAN 
 
To consider an update report of the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods on the Safer 
Leeds Community Safety Business Plan 
 

7 - 38 

8   
 

  2012/13 QUARTER 2 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
To consider a report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Customer Access and 
Performance)/Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods summarising the quarter 2 
performance data relevant to the Scrutiny Board. 
 

39 - 
54 



 

 
D 

9   
 

  FINANCIAL HEALTH MONITORING 
 
To consider the financial position of the 
Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate after 
7 months of the 2012/13 financial year and also the 
initial 2013/14 budget proposals that are relevant 
to the Scrutiny Board’s portfolio.  Report to follow 
 

 

10   
 

  CO-ORDINATION BETWEEN PARKS AND 
COUNTRYSIDE AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
ACTION SERVICES 
 
To consider the report of the Chief Officer of Parks 
and Countryside outlining progress made in co-
ordinating Environmental Action Services with 
Parks and Countryside 
 

55 - 
62 

11   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider the Board’s Work Schedule 
 

63 - 
80 

12   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday, 14 January 2013 at 10.00 a.m.  (pre-
meeting for all Board Members at 9.30 a.m.) 
 

 

 
 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 10th December, 2012 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES) 
 

MONDAY, 12TH NOVEMBER, 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor B Anderson in the Chair 

 Councillors A Blackburn, N Buckley, 
P Davey, R Grahame, M Harland, 
P Harrand, G Hyde, J Jarosz, S Lay, 
K Mitchell and N Walshaw 

 
 
 

38 Late Items  
 

The following late items were submitted to the Agenda: 
 

• Agenda Item 6 – Minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2012 
• Agenda Item 12 – West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority 

Consultation – Comments from Scrutiny 
 

39 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary and other interests  
 

Councillor R Grahame declared an interest in Agenda Item 10, Scrutiny 
Review of the New Grounds Maintenance Contract due to his membership of 
GMB and Agenda Item 12, West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
Consultation due to his membership of the West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority. 
 

40 Minutes -22 October 2012  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 22 October 2012 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

41 Recommendation Tracking - Fuel Poverty Inquiry  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development provided the 
Board with an update on progress made in responding to the 
recommendations arising from the previous scrutiny inquiry into fuel poverty. 
 
The following were in attendance for this item: 
 

• Neil Evans – Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 
• Robert Curtis – Environment Policy Team 
• Kathy Kudelnitzky – Chief Officer, Localities and Partnerships 
• Dr Beth Logan – Policy and Performance Manager, Leeds Initiative 
• Dawn Bailey, Healthy Living Manager, NHS Airedale, Bradford and 

Leeds Cluster 

• Brenda Fullard, Consultant in Public Health, NHS Airedale, Bradford 
and Leeds Cluster 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 10th December, 2012 

 

The draft status categories assigned to each recommendation within the 
report were agreed by the Board.  
 
In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• Appointment of Fuel Poverty Champions at Area Committees. A 
decision was made at the Area Chairs Forum in July 2012 to await the 
outcome of the Council’s area review given that this covered the 
general role of Area Committee Champions and their support needs.  
However, it was noted that some Area Committees had already 
appointed a Fuel Poverty Champion prior to this decision. A report 
setting out the findings and recommendations of the Council’s area 
review is expected at the December meeting of the Executive Board. 

• Involvement of Locality Health and Wellbeing Managers at Area 
Committee level. 

• It was noted that the Department of Energy and Climate Change 
(DECC) made £2.59m available to Leeds City Region to spend on a 
‘Green Deal Go Early’ project. The Council submitted a proposal for 
c£1.28m with the intention of delivering grants to public and private 
sector properties in deprived hard to treat areas and 0% interest loans 
to less deprived private sector properties. 

• That a report was due to go to Executive Board in December regarding 
the Leeds City Region long-term Green Deal project. 

• Partnership working with private landlords 
• Options for bulk fuel purchasing  – a funding opportunity had been 

announced by DECC to help coordinate and conduct a bulk fuel 
purchasing initiative. In line with this, a proposal is to be presented to 
Executive Board in December. 

• Development of the Winter Plan for Leeds and partnership work with 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) to achieve this. Members 
requested a copy of the Winter Plan. 

• As part of Winter Plan, Leeds City Council, with support from NHS 
Leeds Public Health and CCGs submitted a proposal to the 
Department of Health’s ‘Warm Homes Healthy People Fund’ to 
increase energy saving advice and measures to vulnerable people.  
The Board was pleased to note that this had been successful.  

• It was noted that the Member Seminar on Fuel Poverty will take place 
on Wednesday 19th December 2012. 

• Ongoing projects and schemes – outreach work with Groundwork; 
work with Leeds Federated Housing; and a pilot scheme with the 
Citizen’s Advice Bureau to offer joint fuel tariff, debt and income 
maximisation advice over the winter period. 

• That the Recycling and Energy Recovery Facility would be enabled for 
heat and power and there was a clear intention for a district heating 
scheme. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion be noted. 
 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 10th December, 2012 

 

42 Provision of Allotments in Leeds  
 

The report of the Chief Officer of Parks and Countryside set out the context of 
allotment provision in Leeds with particular reference to demand for food 
growing space.  It discussed options and related issues in providing additional 
allotment space to fulfil demand. 
 
Sean Flesher, Chief Officer, Parks and Countryside and Joanne Clough, 
Trading and Operational Manager, Parks and Countryside were in attendance 
for this item. 
 
In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• The report only referred to allotments managed by Leeds City Council 
and not those under Town or Parish Council control. 

• Allotments at High Ash Drive – work was ongoing with a private 
landowner regarding vehicular access to the site. 

• Over 300 plots had been brought into use since 2007 to help meet 
increased demand, with a further 22 planned in the near future. 

• The Open Space, Sport and Recreation Assessment for Leeds, 
published in July 2011, identified a total of 143 allotment sites (108 of 
which are in council ownership) covering 145 hectares.  However, it 
had been assessed that an additional 39 hectares of allotment land 
was needed to meet demand.  Core Strategy Planning officers had 
been asked to identify land.  However, there was no capital funding 
currently allocated for the development of new sites.  There was a 
reliance on Section 106 funds, funding from Town and Parish Councils 
and contributions from Area Committees and Ward Members. 

• Around 4,000 questionnaires were sent out during the summer of 2012 
to all plot holders who currently have an allotment and to those on 
waiting lists to gain an understanding of the demographic profile of 
allotment users. 

• Management of waiting lists – it was reported that a new full time 
Community Food Growing Officer would have responsibility for 
managing allotments as well as encouraging community food growing 
projects across the city. 

• Members requested for further information of allotment provision in 
Leeds including those belonging to Town and Parish Councils and 
comparisons with core cities.  This information is to be considered by a 
working group of the Board early in the new year. 

 
 
RESOLVED – (a )That the report and discussion be noted. 
(b) That the additional information requested by Members be considered by a 
working group of the Scrutiny Board early in the new year. 
 

43 Provision of Bereavement Services in Leeds  
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 10th December, 2012 

 

The report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods set out the 
role and responsibilities of Bereavement Services within Parks and 
Countryside and considered capital investment requirements and overall 
resource implications in managing cemeteries and crematoria across the city. 
 
Sean Flesher, Chief Officer, Parks and Countryside and Joanne Clough, 
Trading and Operational Manager, Parks and Countryside were in attendance 
for this item. 
 
In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• All 23 cemeteries operated by the Council were multi faith.  In addition 
to this, there were also a number of privately run cemeteries across the 
City. 

• An out of hours service is provided for specific faith groups with the 
exception of Christmas Day. 

• Security improvements including installation of CCTV at Harehills 
Cemetery and improvements at Hunslet were welcomed.  It was 
reported that these had not been funded through Area Committees. 

• Combined use of heat and power from crematoria – some work had 
been done at Rawdon and heat exchange was used for the chapel 
building and offices.  At other crematoria there was limited opportunity 
to do this due to the location of buildings. 

• Costs of services and comparisons to other core cities.  It was reported 
that costs were reviewed annually and full price and service details 
were available on the Council’s website. 

• Cemeteries and Crematoria and the Leeds Quality Park Standard.  It 
had been noted that improvements had been made at 13 of the sites 
since the last assessment although only one had achieved the Leeds 
Quality Park Standard. It was estimated that the cost, excluding 
building works, to bring cemeteries and crematoria sites up to the 
Leeds Quality Park standard is around £550k and there was a current 
reliance on funds from Section 106 monies. 

• Capital investment for mercury abatement measures– it was reported 
that the new equipment had been installed at Rawdon that would 
contribute towards meeting targets in relation to the abatement of 
mercury emissions. The mercury waste was collected and disposed of 
by contractors. 

 
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion be noted. 
 

44 Scrutiny review of the new Grounds Maintenance Contract - draft report  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
Board’s draft report following its review of the grounds maintenance contract.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Board’s report following its review of the new grounds 
maintenance contract be agreed. 
 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 10th December, 2012 

 

45 Recycling review - draft terms of reference  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented draft 
terms of reference in relation to the Scrutiny Board’s forthcoming recycling 
review.  The review was aimed at improving recycling through effective 
communication and education. 
 
RESOLVED – That the terms of reference for the forthcoming recycling 
review be agreed. 
 

46 West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority Consultation - comments 
from Scrutiny  

 
The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
draft response of the Board in relation to the West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
Authority’s consultation on proposals to changes to emergency cover in West 
Yorkshire. 
 
RESOLVED – (1) That the report be noted. 
 
(2) That the draft response of the Scrutiny Board be agreed and submitted 
 to the West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority as part of its public 
 consultation process. 
 

47 Work Schedule  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development informed the 
Board of its forthcoming Work Programme.  Recent Executive Board minutes 
were also appended to the report. 
 
Members were reminded of forthcoming work for the Board including the 
Parish and Town Council Review and items for the next agenda including 
Performance Management and the co-ordination of services between Parks 
and Countryside and Environmental Action Services. 
 

48 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 

Monday, 10 December at 10.00 a.m. (Pre-meeting for all Board Members at 
9.30 a.m.) 
 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 

Report to the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 10th December 2012 

Subject: Leeds Community Safety Business Plan - update 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. In preparation for the introduction of an elected West Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner in November 2012, the Executive Board Member for Neighbourhoods, 
Planning and Support Services asked the Scrutiny Board to work closely with the Safer 
Leeds Executive in developing a Leeds Community Safety Business Plan. 

 
2. The Scrutiny Board agreed to undertake this piece of work via a working group over the 

Summer of 2012. The Business Plan was approved by the Safer Leeds Executive in 
September 2012.  The final Business Plan is appended to this report (appendix 1).   

 
3. This report provides the Board with an update on how the Plan has been used to 

inform the development of the 1st West Yorkshire Police and Crime Plan, and to 
publicise Safer Leeds’ priorities to a wider audience.  

 
4. Finally, the report sets out the next steps in developing the plan in to the city’s Crime 

and Disorder Strategy. 
 
Recommendations 
 
5. Members of the Board are asked to note the contents of the report, and agree to take 

an updated version of the plan in April 2013 for comment, prior to it being submitted for 
approval as the city’s statutory Crime and Disorder Strategy by Full Council in July 
2013. 

 Report author:  Liz Jarmin 

Tel: 51228 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

1 Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 To provide the Board with the final version of the Safer Leeds Business Plan, which 

was agreed by the Safer Leeds Executive in September 2012. 
 
1.2 To advise how the plan has been used to inform the newly elected West Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and a wider audience of the city’s priorities in 
relation to crime reduction and policing.  

 
1.3 To inform the Board that the Plan will be developed further in early 2013, before 

being submitted for approval as the city’s statutory Crime and Disorder Strategy to 
Full Council in July 2013. 

 
1.4 To ask for further assistance from the Board as part of this process. 
 
2  Background information 
 
2.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 replaced Police Authorities 

with Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs), and introduced Police and Crime 
Panels (PCPs) to scrutinise the decisions and actions of the PCCs and assist them 
in carrying out their functions. 

 
2.2 PCCs are expected to provide strong local leadership, underpinned by their 

democratic mandate in the drive to reduce crime and keep communities safe.  The 
government state that they will need to work with other local leaders to ensure local 
resources are used effectively and efficiently.   

 
2.3 On the 15th November 2012, Mark Burns-Williamson (Labour Party) was elected as 

the 1st West Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC).  He will hold office for 
a period of 3.5 years to May 2016. 

 
2.4 As PCC, Mr Burns-Williamson will be responsible for developing a four year Police 

and Crime Plan in liaison with the Acting Chief Constable, based upon identified local 
priorities.  

 
2.5 Mr Burns-Williamson has indicated that 2013/14, will be a transitional year, and that 

he intends to delegate resources currently commissioned via local Community Safety 
Partnerships, such as the Community Safety Fund (CSF) and Drugs Intervention 
Programme (DIP), through existing arrangements. 

 
2.6 He will also be responsible for setting the 2013/14 precept, which will be presented 

to the PCP by 1st February 2013, prior to its introduction on 1st April 2013. 
 
2.7 In June 2012, the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board was asked by the 

Executive Board Member for Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support Services, to 
provide support to the Safer Leeds Executive as it developed a Business Plan, which 
outlined the city’s priorities in relation to policing and crime reduction. 

 
2.8 A scrutiny working group met over the Summer of 2012, to make comments on the 

draft plan, prior to it’s approval by the Safer Leeds Executive in September 2012.  A 
copy of the comments made by the working group is attached at appendix 2. 

Page 8



 

 
 
3  Main issues 

3.1 All of the recommendations made by the scrutiny working group (appendix 2), were 
incorporated in to the plan, prior to being finalised. 

3.2 Since the plan was approved, it has been used to inform and publicise the city’s 
priorities in relation to crime reduction and policing, including:  

• The West Yorkshire Partnership Plan – developed by the Police Authority for the 
newly elected PCC 

• Executive Board report – December 2011 

• Joint Strategic Assessment 

• Press articles 

• Copy sent to the newly elected West Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner 

• Priorities included in State of the City document 

• Various presentations 

• Used as a common framework for each of the 5 West Yorkshire districts when 
establishing their own priorities 

 
3.3 However, the plan has not been published a public document at this time.  This is 

because it has been agreed that the Plan will be developed further to become the 
city’s statutory Crime and Disorder Strategy. 

 
3.4 The Council’s constitution, specifies that the city’s Crime and Disorder Strategy must 

be approved by Full Council.  Following discussion with governance services, it has 
been agreed that the plan will be updated in early 2013, then submitted to the 
following Boards / meetings for comment, prior to being submitted for approval to Full 
Council in July 2013.   

 
3.5 The timetable for approving the Safer Leeds Crime and Disorder Strategy is set out 

below.  
 

Safer Leeds Executive – 10th January 2013 
 Approval of 2013/14 Joint Strategic Assessment 
 

Safer Leeds Executive – 5th March 2013 
 1st Draft of Safer Leeds Crime and Disorder Strategy presented to Community Safety 

Partnership. 
 
 Safer and Stronger Scrutiny Board – 15th April 2013 
 To make proposals on Crime and Disorder Strategy 2013. 
 

Executive Board – 19th June 2013 
To receive the draft Safer Leeds Crime and Disorder Strategy 2013 
 
Full Council – 3rd July 2013 
To approve the Safer Leeds Crime and Disorder Strategy 2013 
 
 

Page 9



 

3.6 Running alongside the development of the strategy, further work will be undertaken 
to ensure that the strategy links in to the West Yorkshire Police and Crime Plan. 

 
3.7 This process also means that more accurate information on how resources allocated 

from the office of the Police and Crime Commissioner will be used, to deliver 
activities that address the city’s crime reduction and policing priorities. 

 
 
4  Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 In line with the timetable above, Scrutiny Board Members will be invited to comment 
on the strategy on it’s routes to Full Council. 

4.1.2 Other key partners such as West Yorkshire Police, Probation, Youth Offending 
Service and Criminal Justice service partners will contribute and comment on the 
strategy through the Safer Leeds Executive. 

4.1.3 As part of the development of the Police and Crime Plan, the PCC will be 
undertaking public consultation in early 2013.  Recommendations from this 
consultation will be used to inform the Safer Leeds Crime and Disorder Strategy. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 The Safer Leeds Crime and Disorder Strategy will make reference to the Safer 
Leeds Partnership’s commitment to serve all members of its communities effectively 
and acknowledges that all of its actions and plans should give due regard to 
implications for different groups and sections of the community. 

 
4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The Scrutiny Board has provided its support to ensure that the business plan 
accurately reflects local community safety priorities and demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the activity it wishes the Police and Crime Commissioner to 
support.  Particular consideration was therefore given to the associated links with 
the relevant priorities set out with the City Priority Plans.  

 
4.3.2 Further consideration will be given to this issue as the Crime and Disorder Strategy 

is developed. 
 
4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 As mentioned above, PCCs will become responsible for setting out a four year 
Police and Crime Plan (five for subsequent plans), in liaison with the Chief 
Constable, based upon identified local priorities.   

4.4.2 The newly elected West Yorkshire PCC has indicated that 2013/14, will be a 
transitional year, and that he intends to delegate resources currently commissioned 
via local Community Safety Partnerships, such as the Community Safety Fund 
(CSF) and Drugs Intervention Programme (DIP), through existing arrangements 

Page 10



 

4.4.3 The Leeds Community Safety Business Plan has been used to demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the activity it wishes the Police and Crime Commissioner to support 
in 2012/13. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 This section is not relevant to this report. 
 
5  Conclusions 
 
5.1 The attached Safer Leeds Business Plan, outlines the city’s priorities in relation to 

crime reduction and policing. It has been used to inform and influence the newly 
elected West Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner of the city’s aims and 
ambitions in this area of business. 

 
5.2 The city has a statutory obligation to develop a Crime and Disorder Strategy, which 

sets out the city’s approach to reduce crime and disorder, and deliver the city’s 
ambition to be “the be the best city in the UK with the best community safety 
partnership and services.” 

5.3 It has been agreed that the Safer Leeds Business Plan, should be further 
developed and submitted to Full Council in July 2013, as the Safer Leeds Crime 
and Disorder Strategy. 

5.4 The Safer and Stronger Scrutiny Board has played a key role in helping to develop 
the Business Plan, and its further assistance is requested to develop the Crime and 
Disorder Strategy. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to note the contents of the report, and agree to take an 
updated version of the Safer Leeds Business Plan in April 2013 for comment, prior 
to it being submitted for approval as the city’s statutory Crime and Disorder Strategy 
by Full Council in July 2013. 

  
7  Background documents1 

7.1 None 

 
 
 
 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

WORKING DOCUMENT 

 

Partnership 

Business Plan  
2012 - 2015 

 
 

P
age 13



 

 2

Welcome ~ Chair’s Statement 
I am delighted to introduce the Safer Leeds business plan 

and invite you to read about some of the excellent work 

that partnership has carried out over the past year. 

 

Despite considerable financial pressures that the 

partnership and individual organisations have faced, we 

have remained focussed and I am pleased to report 

significant improvements. 

 

We know there is more to do as, like many other cities, 

Leeds continues to face the challenges that crime, anti-

social behaviour and substance misuse bring.  It is 

important to me that we build on our previous successes, 

strengthen our partnership approaches at a city wide and 

local level, and endeavour to address the most significant 

issues of concern to the citizens of Leeds. 

 

Crucially, as a partnership we need to address causes and 

not just symptoms, which means we cannot simply rely on 

short term ‘fixes’ if we want to see sustainable reductions in 

the long term.  Through strong leadership and excellent 

service delivery we are determined to meet this challenge.  

 

Looking ahead, to improve community safety outcomes 

and the lives of individuals, families and communities, we 

will concentrate on ‘what we must do’ and work with 

others on ‘what they can do’ in genuine partnership. 

 

We welcome your comments, suggestions or concerns 

about the work of the partnership ~ please see our contact 

details on the back page. 

Contents 

 

Welcome ~ Chair’s Statement 2 

Introduction ~ Safer Leeds 3 

Performance & Key Facts 4 

Recent Achievements 7 

Partnership Expectations 9 

Safer Leeds Partnership ~ Our Priorities 2013/14    13 
 

Financial Budget 15 

Changing Landscape 157 

Our City Priorities and Governance      18 

Appendix ~ Leeds Community Safety Services 19 

  

Councillor Peter Gruen, Executive Member for Community 

Safety 

P
age 14



 

 3

Introduction ~ Safer Leeds 
The Safer Leeds is the city’s statutory Community Safety 

Partnership responsible for tackling crime, disorder and 

substance misuse, in the city. 

Leeds is proud of its strong record of partnership working, 

which was embedded as part of the Crime and Disorder 

Act (1998) and subsequent legal enhancements. 

Our Ambition  
We want to be the best city in the UK with the best 

community safety partnership and services. 

Our Desired Outcome 
People in Leeds are safe and feel safe in their homes, 

in the streets, and the places they go. 

Our Commitments and Priority Activity (see page 13) 
Ø  Reducing crime levels and its impact across Leeds (with 

the main focus upon Burglary). 

§ Burglary Reduction Programme (BRP) 

§ More integrated working with Neighbourhood 

Policing Teams (NPTs), particularly Police Community 

Support Officers (PCSO’s) 

§ Drugs and Offender Management Programmes 

Ø  Effectively tackle and reduce anti-social behaviour in 

our communities. 

§ Leeds Anti Social Behaviour Team 

Ø  Improving safeguarding and reducing vulnerability for 

individuals, families and communities. 

§ Reducing Domestic Violence and Safeguarding the 

Most Vulnerable Member of Society 

 

Governance  
Recognising that no single agency can address these 

complex issues in isolation, the following authorities have 

made a commitment to work collectively on addressing 

community safety risks, threats and harms. Together they 

form the Safer Leeds Executive: 

Responsible Authorities Co-operating Bodies 

§ Executive Member  

§ Leeds City Council  

§ Leeds NHS 

§ West Yorkshire Police  

§ West Yorkshire Police 

Authority 

§ West Yorkshire Fire & 

Rescue Service 

§ West Yorkshire Probation 

Trust 

§ Leeds Children’s Trust 

Board 

§ Leeds Safeguarding 

Children’s Board 

§ Youth Offending Service 

§ Adult Social Care 

§ Arms Length 

Management 

Organisations (ALMO’s) 

§ Leeds Primary Care Trust 

§ HM Prison Service Leeds 

The Executive have a statutory requirement to: 

Ø  Produce a annual Joint Strategic Assessment (JSA) 

Ø  Prepare and implement a Partnership Plan, making 

arrangements for community engagement in its 

development 

Ø  Establish information sharing arrangements 

Ø  Be responsible for establishing Domestic Homicide 

Reviews. 

The Executive is required to comply with the Council’s  

financial regulations, and also to co-operate with the 

Scrutiny process, as detailed in the Crime and Disorder 

(Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2010.  

P
age 15



 

 4

Performance & Key Facts  

Year Total Crime
Violent 

Crime

Criminal 

Damage

Acquisitive 

Crime
Robbery

Vehicle 

Crime
Theft of MV

Theft From 

MV
Burglary

2002/03 128920 14031 22780 44352 2650 25361 9279 16082 16341

2003/04 125692 17074 24821 37170 1961 21433 7286 14147 13776

2004/05 103404 16809 23100 25894 1202 15251 5388 9863 9441

2005/06 98014 18034 21785 21384 1313 12401 3773 8628 7670

2006/07 94196 17294 21237 22392 1641 12507 3326 9181 8244

2007/08 85737 15646 18431 20289 1490 10350 2871 7479 8449

2008/09 82278 14594 16588 21162 1407 10507 2732 7775 9248

2009/10 75344 13177 13519 19935 1303 9111 2000 7111 9521

2010/11 74038 13359 11430 18953 1230 8854 1505 7349 8869

2011/12 70445 12065 10121 16376 1107 7607 1211 6396 7662

% Change
(2002/03 to 2011/12)

-45% -14% -56% -63% -58% -70% -87% -60% -53%

• Acquisitive crime: where the offender aims to gain economically  
from the crime 

 

The above table highlights the levels of recorded crime 

across a ten year period for total offences and the most 

problematic offence categories. 

 

There has been a sustained reduction in the total numbers 

of recorded crimes in Leeds over the last 10 years, leading 

to an overall 45% lower level of offences recorded in 

2011/12 than 2002/03.  Reductions have occurred across all 

crime types over this period.  This has been due to 

increased partnership work and investment in areas such 

as burglary reduction, but also through an improved use of 

intelligence leading to better deployment of resources.  

 

Reducing crime levels and their impact across 

Leeds  
 

§ Burglary ~ Problematic youths have been identified who 

view burglary as an extension of ASB and such “up and 

coming” offenders can rapidly become prolific. In the 

12 months to the end of May 2012, there were 7,080 

recorded domestic burglary offences, down 22.3% (2036 

fewer victims) compared with the previous year.  

 

§ Thefts ~ there has been an upward trend in thefts and 

continued increases are likely, especially in theft from 

person, metal thefts and theft from shops. 

 

§ Violent Crime ~ although the overall levels of violent 

offences in Leeds is reducing; there continue to be local 

P
age 16



 

 5

concentrations of incidents and sporadic peaks in 

specific crime types. 

 

§ Alcohol Misuse ~ although there is no automatic 

relationship between alcohol and violence, violent 

crimes are consistently the highest proportion of 

offences identified as ‘drink involved’. 

 

§ Drug Misuse ~ a number of cannabis farms continue to 

be found across Leeds, suggesting a prolific market.  

Complaints around cannabis often refer to youths 

“smoking” in the street (often also linked with on street 

drinking).  Visible drug use is also often associated with 

other ASB and aggressive or abusive behaviour.  

 

§ Effective drug treatment has a clear role in preventing  

crime. The Leeds Drug Intervention programme plays an 

essential role in engaging offenders in treatment 

services with approximately 20% of people coming into  

treatment services through this route  

 

Effectively tackle and reduce anti-social 

behaviour in our communities  
 

§ Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) ~ The most common issues 

across Leeds include youth related nuisance, alcohol 

misuse, persistent noise nuisance, vandalism and graffiti. 

Information from the quarterly WYPA household survey 

states that only 12.24% of respondents feel the levels of 

ASB in their local area have increased.  This is a 

significant reduction from the 2008/09 baseline of 

18.03%.  The overall trend is downwards, although there 

is some variation in quarters and between localities.  

 

§ Perceptions ~ In some areas, perceptions of high rates 

of crime and anti-social behaviour may not reflect 

reported incidents. Residents may not report incidents 

due to acceptance (“it’s just how it is here”) or 

intimidation and fear of reprisal.  Alternatively, due to 

low tolerance or unsubstantiated fears, there may be 

higher reporting of relatively minor incidents in some 

areas.  It is therefore recognised that more work needs 

to take place to improve reporting rates and develop a 

better intelligence picture of crimes across the city. 

 

§ Repeat Victims ~ Repeated incidents of damage and 

ASB can result in residents leaving their homes and the 

levels of harassment and fear for individuals can be 

extensive. In some estate areas, there are also issues 

around specific families or groups highly involved in 

local ASB and crime.  

 

 

 

P
age 17



 

 6

 
 

 

 

Improving safeguarding and reducing vulnerability 

for individuals, families and communities  
 

§ Domestic violence ~ The impact of domestic violence 

has negative consequences on families and children’s 

lives and many agencies accept it as an indicator of 

child abuse. There is also a very high repeat victimisation 

rate indicating victims are often subjected to long term 

abuse. 

 

§ Hate Crime ~ Victims of severe hate incidents, such as 

assault or damage, frequently report long-term, 

repeated intimidation and abuse with escalating levels 

of violence and threat.  

 

§ Mental Health ~ A significant proportion of ‘disability’ 

related hate crimes involve victims identified as having 

mental health issues or learning difficulties. Mental 

health issues do not only relate to victimisation, 

individuals in custody with mental health disorders are 

over-represented compared to the general population.  

 

§ Sexual Exploitation ~ The extent to which some 

vulnerable people, including children in care or in 

chaotic family homes, and those who regularly go 

missing from home or care and are sexually exploited, is 

subject to investigation.  A strategy group and action 

plan have been established to take forward this 

important area of work and develop work-streams to 

protect those that may be targeted by abusers. 

 

 

 

P
age 18



 

 7

Recent Achievements 
 

The Safer Leeds Partnership is a mature and effective 

partnership that has delivered integrated services to our 

customers.  
 

§ There has been a steady and sustained fall in the total 

numbers of recorded crimes in Leeds over the last 10 

years. Robberies, vehicle crimes and violent crimes all 

see significant and continuing reductions. 

 

§ Burglary has been a particular problem within Leeds for 

some years and is seen as a key priority by Safer Leeds.  

Significant reductions have been achieved by bringing 

together the city’s main crime reduction and prevention 

agencies into one focused city-wide team to ensure 

that activity is co-ordinated for the greatest impact.  This 

freshly invigorated and highly collaborative approach 

has proven to be incredibly successful. In December 

2011 the city recorded its lowest burglary count in over 

10 years.  Work has progressed to further improve 

burglary levels through the introduction of predictive 

mapping and partnership responses. 

 

§ Integrated Offender Management has led to a more 

connected approach, identifying, targeting and 

managing problematic criminals in our community.  

Close working with HM Prison Leeds and other HMP 

establishments has supported a more co-ordinated 

approach to managing offenders on release into the 

community. 

 

§ The Drug Intervention Programme is helping adult 

offenders who misuse drugs out of crime and into 

treatment. More integrated working with the prison 

service have been established to minimise the risks of 

those released from custody returning to crime.  More 

people are receiving treatment more quickly and more 

people are leaving support services drug free. 

 

§ Safer Schools Partnerships have been developed to 

prevent young people engaging in criminal activity.  

They have contributed to increased attendance and a 

decrease in exclusions as well as a drop in crime-related 

incidents. 

 

 
§ Residents expect public agencies to tackle Anti Social 

Behaviour (ASB) in their localities in a responsive and 

effective manner.  In Leeds multi-agency teams have 

been introduced to specifically tackle this issue. 

P
age 19



 

 8

§ Through the development of shared case management 

systems, community links, and improved information 

sharing, offenders can be identified and targeted 

through a range of disruption and enforcement tactics.  

This partnership approach also provides a co-ordinated 

and improved level of response and support to victims. 

 

§ Partnership working between Anti-Social Behaviour 

Teams, Children’s Services and Offender Management 

Services (Youth Offending Service, Probation and 

Police) has delivered intensive family support for those in 

greatest need with acute, complex issues.  This has 

resulted in significant reductions in offending and anti-

social behaviour amongst those receiving this 

assistance. 

 

 

 

 
 

§ Partnership approaches have been developed and 

implemented to address many of the safeguarding and 

vulnerability issues across Leeds.  Tackling domestic 

violence and hate crimes continue to be priorities 

across the city.  Multi Agency Risk Assessment 

Conferences have improved partnership working with 

vulnerable victims and assisted in dealing with 

problematic offenders. 

 

§ There is increasing public and partnership concerns 

around sexual exploitation of children.  Specific multi-

agency groups have been set up to identify and 

support victims and target offenders engaging in such 

activities. 

 

§ Community work is ongoing to help identify areas or 

groups at risk of escalating tensions, so that direct 

interventions and support can be targeted where and 

when they are most needed.  The effectiveness of such 

partnership working was demonstrated in the summer of 

2011, when Leeds was able to avoid the widespread 

disturbances and rioting that took place in other major 

cities across the country.   

 

§ Partnership work is also ongoing to identify those most at 

risk of influence through extremist agendas, to focus 

support and intervention to prevent radicalisation of 

these individuals. 

 

P
age 20



 

 9

Partnership Expectations  
 

Safer Leeds will focus on our desired outcome: 

 

‘People in Leeds are safe and feel safe  

in their homes, in the streets, and the places they go’. 

 
We expect all partners to: 

 

Ø  Continue funding programmes that have a direct impact 

on individuals, families and communities. 

Ø  Align relevant service delivery to our 3 commitments. 

Ø  Ensure value for money through cost effective 

deployment of services, utilising existing resources more 

effectively and efficiently.   

Ø  Manage risks, threats and harms by reviewing, 

challenging and scrutinising delivery. 

 

This clear partnership commitment has potential to make 

significant cost savings and will improve public satisfaction 

and confidence. 

 

Equalities 
 

Ø  The partnership aims to serve all members of its 

communities effectively.  

Ø  All actions and plans should give due regard to 

implications for different groups and sections of the 

community. 

Ø  We will ensure people are not excluded or 

disadvantaged because of their Race, Gender, Age, 

Disability, Religion and Belief, or Sexual Orientation. 

Why is this important? 
 

Leeds has seen steady and sustained reductions in total 

crime over the last 10 years.  Safer Leeds services have been 

critical to this success (e.g. ASB teams, Burglary Reduction, 

Drug Intervention and PCSO’s etc) despite economic and 

social pressures.    

 

The expectations we have of ourselves and others are 

important as they will have an impact on: 

 

Ø  The wider long term vision of Leeds Initiative (see page 

17); the work of the entire city Priority Boards and our 

contribution to the prosperity and future of the city. 

 

Ø  The communities we serve, and how we to continue to 

listen, involve and act on the issues that matter to local 

people.  

 

P
age 21



 

 10

Reducing crime levels and its impact across Leeds  
 

Priorities 

§ Reduce and prevent offending and re-offending  

§ Develop victim led approaches to restorative practise  

§ Support crime reduction and partnership working 

 

Key Indicators 

Ø  Reduce burglary  

Ø  Reduce Theft from Person 

Ø  Reduce Offending rates (10-17) (18+)  

Ø  Reduce Re-offending rate (10-17)(18+)  

Ø  Increase the Restorative Practice outcomes as a part of 

overall Detection Rate 

Ø  Increase the percentage of Young People on statutory 

court orders who undertake a restorative intervention as 

part of the their sentence 

Ø  Reduce alcohol fuelled violence 

Ø  Increase the rate of successful completions for those 

exiting drug treatment 

 

Priorities for 2013/14 

 

Continue to reduce domestic burglary through a targeted 

multi agency approach 

 

Continue to support offender management services, which 

seek to rehabilitate and reintegrate offenders back in to 

society and away from crime 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 22



 

 11

Effectively tackle and reduce anti-social 

behaviour in our communities  

 

Priorities 

§ Extend multi-agency approaches to ASB, providing 

effective solutions for residents experiencing persistent  

noise nuisance 

§ Tailor responses and support to the needs of local 

communities 

§ Target troubled families involved in ASB and offending 

through intensive interventions 

 

Key Indicators  

Ø  Reduce proportion of residents who believe that ASB has 

increased  

Ø  Reported ASB level per 1,000  

Ø  Increase the proportion of ASB cases with positive 

outcomes  

Ø  Increase customer satisfaction Reported ASB for families 

using Signpost  

Ø  Improved school attendance for children in families using 

Signpost 

 

Priorities for 2013/14 

 

Continue to develop and deliver multi agency responses to 

effectively deal with all forms of anti-social behaviour, 

including persistent noise nuisance 

 

Continue to provide community reassurance and build 

confidence though neighbourhood policing  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 23



 

 12

Improving safeguarding and reducing vulnerability 

for individuals, families and communities  
 

Priorities 

§ Safeguard individuals and families by tackling domestic 

violence 

§ Safeguard communities by dealing with hate crime and 

preventing groups and individuals becoming involved in 

extremist behaviour 

§ Protect and support vulnerable young people from 

crime related risks, threats and harms 

 

Key Indicators  

Ø  Reduce repeat victimisation rate for Domestic violence 

cases  

Ø  Reduce repeat victimisation rate for high risk Hate Crime 

cases 

Ø  Reduce the number of violent crimes against young 

people (U18) 

Ø  Improve the percentage young people who report 

feeling safer 

 

Priorities for 2013/14 

 

Expansion of the DASSL initiative to increase the city’s 

capacity to work with domestic violence (DV) perpetrators, 

including the secondment of an officer from HMP Leeds. 

 

Continue to develop and deliver multi agency responses to 

effectively deal with sexual exploitation and other forms of 

sexually harmful behaviour 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 24



 

 13

Safer Leeds Partnership - Our 

Priorities 2013/14 
 

The strengths of Leeds’ current approach to reducing crime 

and protecting communities, is driven by strong and 

effective local leadership and partnership work.  The citizens 

of Leeds want to live in communities that are safe and free 

from crime.  However to achieve this, the Safer Leeds 

Partnership recognises that many of the issues that matter 

most to local people, cannot be dealt with in isolation.  It 

has therefore invested in a range of multi- agency initiatives 

which it considers critical to achieving its ambition that, 

‘People in Leeds are safe and feel safe in their homes, in the 

streets, and the places they go’. 

 

Reducing crime levels and its impact across Leeds  

Burglary Reduction Programme –  Established in September 

2011, the Leeds Burglary Reduction Programme consists of 

Officers from the Council, West Yorkshire Police, Probation, 

Youth Offending and other key partners.  Its focus, is to deal 

with prolific offenders in the city’s localities of concern, to 

work closely with individuals who are considered likely to 

enter the criminal system with burglary as their first offence 

and to work with our most vulnerable communities to 

reduce their likelihood of being a victim of burglary.  Since 

the initiative commenced, domestic burglary has reduced 

by 33% in the city (01/09/2011 to 31/07/2012).  

 

This project is currently funded through the Community 

Safety Fund, which will become part of the PCC pooled 

budget from 2013/14. 

 

The Leeds Integrated Offender Management Service (The 

Hub) provides offenders with the opportunity to access a 

broad range of services such as housing, employment, 

substance misuse and debt management to support their 

re-integration back into the community and help reduce re-

offending. Delivered through a multi agency approach 

involving Police, Probation, HM Prison Leeds, Foundation 

Housing, Leeds DIP  and a range of other partners, it 

provides a vital lifeline to those wishing to change and 

improve their lives and break the cycle of re-offending 

prevalent in some sections of our community. 

 

This project is currently supported by the Drugs Intervention 

Programme (DIP) funding for which become part of the PCC 

pooled budget from 2013/14. 

 

Leedswatch – CCTV – This multi agency service monitors the 

city’s network of public surveillance cameras.  It houses a 

dedicated Police liaison team who pro-actively and re-

actively work with Council officers to reduce crime and 

improve detection rates, making Leeds a safer place to live, 

work and visit.  

 

Effectively tackle and reduce anti-social behaviour 

in our communities  

Leeds Anti Social Behaviour Team (LASBT) - Three multi-

agency teams, consisting of officers from the Council, 

Police, the three Leeds ALMO’s and Victim Support, operate 

across the city to effectively deal with all types of anti social 

behaviour.  Since it began delivery, the LASBT has dealt with 

1937 reports of ASB, reduced the amount of time it takes to 

P
age 25



 

 14

deal with individual cases by 106 days and improved overall 

satisfaction with the service provided  by 24.3%. 

 

West Yorkshire Police currently provide dedicated resources 

to work as part of the LASBT. 

 

Police Community Support Officer’s (PCSO’s) –  Nothing 

illustrates more the Partnership’s determination to prioritise 

Community Safety than the decision by partners – in the 

face of massive budgetary cut-backs - to support PCSOs in 

Leeds.  PCSOs play a vital role in supporting crime reduction 

and community safety in Leeds. The value placed on PCSOs 

by LCC is demonstrated by our commitment to jointly fund 5 

PCSO’s for each Ward of the city, over the last 7/8 years at 

a cost of over £1.5million per annum.  Over the past 12 

months, work has taken place to develop more joined up 

delivery between local services delivered by the Council , 

ALMO’s and Neighbourhood Policing Teams (NPT’s) to more 

effectively address crime and grimes related issue. 

 

The City Council match funds 30% of 165 PCSO’s costs, with 

the remainder coming from the Home Office via West 

Yorkshire Police Authority.  This match funding contribution 

will become part of the PCC pooled budget from 2013/14. 

 

Improving safeguarding and reducing vulnerability 

or individuals, families and communities  

Domestic Abuse Scheme Safer Leeds (DASSL) - The DASSL 

project works with the perpetrators of domestic violence to 

lessen the risk of harm within families and to reduce repeat 

victimisation.  At present referrals are almost exclusively from 

childrens social work, where child protection plans are in 

place.  A key focus for 2013/14, will be to extend the reach 

of this scheme to include police referrals from custody suites, 

self referrals and group work. Recently, HMP Leeds has 

seconded an officer to work as part of the DASSL team, to 

work with male offenders with a history of domestic abuse, 

supporting them to re-settle within the community, thereby 

reducing the risk of harm within the family environment. 

 

West Yorkshire Police provides dedicated support to help 

reduce domestic violence via Multi Agency Risk Assessment 

Conferences (MARAC) process. 

 

A multi-agency response to safeguarding continues to 

develop across Leeds. As an illustration of our commitment 

to the most vulnerable in our communities, the partnership 

arrangements which have evolved over the past 12 months 

are developing specific products and projects which seek 

to protect those at greatest risk 

 

Conclusion  

In November 2012, the residents of West Yorkshire will vote 

for their first Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC).  The 

PCC will be responsible for deciding police and crime 

priorities, and allocating resources to supporting these.  This 

new way of working will fundamentally change the way 

that policing and crime across West Yorkshire is 

commissioned and delivered. This may put some of the 

initiatives outlined above at risk.  We assert that the residents 

of Leeds, would be best served by continuing to support 

these priorities, helping the Safer Leeds Partners to build on 

the excellent work that has taken place over many years to 

make Leeds a safe and welcoming place to live and work. 

P
age 26



 

 15

Financial Budget Safer Leeds 

Budget 2012/13 * 
 

Funding Source
Home Office Grants 1,381,637      
Income to Com Safety 1,001,550      
Housing Revenue Accounts (LCC) 4,488,580      
Grant Funding (LCC) 3,315,580      
Total Income 10,187,347  

 
 

Leeds City Council

76%

Home Office 

Grants

14% Income to 

Com Safety

10%

 

Future ~ New funding and decision making arrangements 

will be in place with the introduction of Police and Crime 

Commissioners (PCC) in November 2012.  From April 2013, all 

Community Safety related funding derived from the Home 

Office will be pooled within the PCC’s budget. 

A number of Safer Leeds priority programmes, including 

Leeds Anti-Socials Behaviour Team, Burglary Reduction, Drug 

Intervention, CCTV and PCSO’s, rely directly on funding from 

the Home Office.  It is anticipated that these programmes 

will continue receive funding through the office of the PCC. 

 

 

 
 

Allocation by Commitments
Reducing Crime 6,011,327      
Reducing Anti-Social Behaviour 1,578,310      
Improve Safeguarding and Reduce Vulnerability 1,571,080      
Other Community Safety 1,026,630      
Total Allocation 10,187,347   

 

Other 

Community 

Safety

10%

Reducing Anti-

Social Behaviour

15%

Improve 

Safeguarding & 

Reduce 

Vulnerability

15%
Reducing Crime 

60%

 

Constraints ~ To manage budget pressures, Safer Leeds 

restructured in 2011/12. This involved a review of existing 

services to ensure the continuation of priority activities.  Staff 

teams previously based in West Yorkshire Police divisions 

were centralised and co-located with LCC teams.  Grants 

related spend was also reduced by £568k.   
 

* Does not include funding for local policing through West 

Yorkshire Police, and other drugs programmes funded via West 

Yorkshire Probation Service and the Leeds and Bradford NHS Trust. 

 

P
age 27



 

 16

Changing Landscape  
 

Over the next few years, the landscape in which Crime and 

Policing is delivered within our communities will change.  

However, the Community Safety agenda will continue to 

play a critical role in improving the well-being and success 

of individuals, families and communities. Listed below are 

the key factors and policies that will have a direct impact 

on how we as a partnership work.  

 
§ Police and Crime Commissioners ~ Elected for a four 

year term, Police and Crime Commissioners will hold the 

police and other partners to greater account for the 

delivery of policing and crime reduction.  Replacing the 

Police Authority, the PCC will appoint the Chief 

Constable, decide priorities, and make decision about 

how funding will be spent on policing and community 

safety services (including services outside direct policing). 

 

§ Localism ~ Seeks to redistribute power and funding from 

government to local people to deliver what they want 

for their communities, transforming public services and 

ensuring that all communities are equipped and 

incentivised to grow and prosper. 

 

§ Reducing Reoffending ~ Introducing greater involvement 

of the private and voluntary sectors in the rehabilitation 

of offenders, including use of payment by results, to cut 

reoffending and introducing more effective sentencing 

policies. 

 

§ Restorative Justice ~ Further develop programmes to 

repair the harm caused by offenders, utilising restorative 

justice approaches, which address the needs of victims 

and the responsibilities of offenders. 
 

§ Families First ~ The introduction of targeted programmes 

of activity which aim to break the cycle of crime and ASB 

that exist amongst some of the city’s families, by 

supporting adults in to work, and moving children & 

young people in to education or training.  This initiative 

includes an element of payment by results. 

 

§ ASB ~ Proposed changes in legislation may require a 

greater focus on partnership responses to the needs of 

victims, community resolution, and longer term solutions. 

 

§ Welfare Reform ~ Changes to be introduced in April 2013 

may have the potential to directly impact on community 

safety outcomes. 

 

§ Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults ~ Following a review 

there are government plans to provide statutory 

protection for those who may need care, who are 

unable to safeguard themselves, and are at risk of 

significant harm.  Proposals include Councils having a 

legal duty to investigate suspected instances of adult 

abuse and NHS trusts and police required to appoint 

representatives to adult safeguarding boards. 

§ Safeguarding Vulnerable Children and Young People ~ 

Continued focussed on partnership working to ensure 

that vulnerable children who are at risk of abuse receive 

protection and support, particularly in the light of a 

number of serious incidents in recent years. 

P
age 28



 

 17

 

Our City Priorities & Governance  
 

Leeds Initiative  
The Leeds Initiative is the city’s local strategic partnership. 

Founded in 1990, it brings together the public, private, 

community, voluntary and faith sectors to work together to 

achieve success, encourage improvement, and overcome 

problems for the benefit of all citizens. 
 

Vision for Leeds  
After listening carefully to what local people, businesses and 

organisations have said, the Vision for Leeds is: 

 

By 2030, Leeds will be locally and internationally recognised 

as the best city in the UK 

 

This long-term Vision is supported by three aims 

Ø  Leeds will be fair, open and welcoming 

Ø  Leeds’ economy will be prosperous and sustainable 

Ø  All Leeds’ communities will be successful 

 

Under the Leeds Initiative Board, there are five strategic 

partnership boards, which provide a strong lead and focus 

on the actions that will make a difference.  

 

Each of the five Boards has a City Priority Plan which sets out 

the key outcomes and priorities to be delivered by 2015.  

Each Board is responsible for measuring and tracking 

progress towards the Vision aims.  

 

 

 
 

Leeds 

Initiative 

Board
Children’s Trust 

Board

Health & Wellbeing 

Board

Housing & 

Regeneration Board

Sustainable Economy 

& Culture Board

Safer & Stronger 

Communities Board

Safer Leeds 

Executive

 
 

Safer Leeds links directly to the wider Safer and Strong Board 

and its City Priority Plan (2011-2015) and also supports the 

delivery work of the other key Boards. 

 

Safer Leeds will seek the support, energy and enthusiasm of 

local people, organisations and businesses throughout the 

city, to help deliver against our commitments and annual 

priorities for change. 

 
 

P
age 29



 

 18

Appendix ~ Leeds Community 

Safety Services  
 

Area Community Safety Partnerships 
Area Community Safety Co-ordinators work with 

Neighbourhood Police Teams and other local partners to 

tackle community safety concerns and priorities at a local 

level.  These partnerships are essential in delivering 

community safety activity at a local, community level. 

 

Crime Reduction 
The Crime Reduction Team works in partnership to develop 

a whole range of programmes, including activities to 

reduce burglary and repeat victimisation, ‘Alley gating’ (a 

ginnel gating programme), the use of property marking 

and tracking devices to reduce crime.    

 

Domestic Violence Team 
The Domestic Violence Team works with partners to 

improve services for people affected by domestic abuse.  

This includes training and awareness raising work with a 

range of service providers and work with partners to 

improve the effectiveness of the Criminal Justice System.  

Specific programmes designed to disrupt perpetrators are 

being developed.  

 

Additionally, the coordination of Multi Agency Risk 

Assessment Conferences across the city for the most high 

risk cases is led by Community Safety.  Current work is being 

developed with the police, children’s services and other 

partners to improve support for families affected by 

domestic abuse.   

 

Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team 
The Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team (comprising of staff 

from a range of agencies including LCC, Housing (ALMO), 

Victim Support, West Yorkshire Police and West Yorkshire 

Fire & Rescue Service Arson Task Force) was established in 

April 2011, to provide an integrated, effective response to 

anti-social behaviour and increase public confidence in 

key agencies’ responses. 

 

Leeds Watch CCTV and Security Services 
In April 2011 CCTV and Security Services were merged, 

including the transfer of the Out of Hours Noise Nuisance 

service from Environmental Health.  A new CCTV 

monitoring facility has been developed in partnership with 

West Yorkshire Integrated Passenger Transport to provide 

improved surveillance across Leeds and at all 26 Metro Bus 

Stations across West Yorkshire.  

 

Work is ongoing to streamline WYP resources to work 

alongside Council colleagues in delivering an enhanced 

and value for money service. In 2012/13, it is anticipated 

that the CCTV monitoring service for East North East Homes 

Ltd will transfer to Leeds Watch.   

 

Performance and Intelligence Team 
A re-shaped District Intelligence Function is in place to 

ensure a more co-ordinated and partnership based 

intelligence function across the city.  The unit has 

responsibility for the development of problem profiles and 

P
age 30



 

 19

products to inform city-wide tasking to address key crime 

issues.  Additionally, leading on research and development 

including new approaches and community safety 

strategies. 

 

Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) 
Despite massive budgetary cuts, support for PCSO’s has 

continued in Leeds.  PCSOs play a vital role in supporting 

crime reduction and community safety, acting as “eyes 

and ears” within local areas to report on and tackle a 

range of issues such as anti-social behaviour, truancy and 

safeguarding.  

Prevent 
The Prevent work stream now sits within Leeds Community 

Safety.  A calendar of training and awareness sessions is 

being developed to raise awareness, tackle the rhetoric of 

violent extremist groups, train local individuals and develop 

a peer learning network.   

 

Proceeds of Crime Act Team (POCA) 
The three divisional Proceeds of Crime Act teams (officers 

charged with seizing assets and cash gained through 

criminality) have merged into a single unit within Safer 

Leeds.  This will increase the capacity and coordination of 

activity across the district focusing on strategic areas of 

concern including individuals linked to burglary and firearm 

offences.  

 

Safeguarding 
In May 2011 three Police Divisional Safeguarding Units 

merged into a single district unit.  There are also 

opportunities around co-locating staff from Children’s 

Social Care with Safer Leeds that would assist in refining 

referral and investigative practice, especially in relation to 

domestic violence, missing children and child sexual 

exploitation.  

 

Safer Schools Partnerships 
The Safer Schools Partnerships, where dedicated WYP 

officers work in partnership with the whole school 

community, have been developed to prevent young 

people in engaging in criminal activity. 

 

Signpost- Family Intervention Service 
Signpost is a citywide service that provides intensive 

support to families with a range of complex needs, through 

3 locality based multi-disciplinary teams specifically 

targeting: 

§ Families who are persistent perpetrators of anti-social 

behaviour, particularly targeting young people who are 

on ASBO’s or families facing eviction. 

§ Households where a member of the family is a prolific 

offender, with a particular emphasis on burglars. 

§ Families who are known to Children and Children’s 

Social Work Service and at risk due to safeguarding / 

child welfare concerns. 

 

 

P
age 31



 

 20 

How to Contact Us 
 
Safer Leeds  

3rd Floor  

2 Great George Street  

Leeds 

LS2 8BA 

 

Email: community.safety@leeds.gov.uk 

www.saferleeds.org.uk 
www.leeds.initiative.org.uk 

P
age 32



Appendix 2 

 

Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 
 

Development of the Leeds Community Safety Business Plan 
 

Comments from Scrutiny to the Safer Leeds Executive 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 In June 2012, the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board learned that 

the Safer Leeds Executive was in the process of developing a Leeds 
Community Safety Business Plan in preparation for the introduction of an 
elected West Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner in November 2012. 

 
1.2 The Executive Board Member for Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support 

Services asked the Scrutiny Board to work closely with the Safer Leeds 
Executive to ensure that the Plan is fit for purpose prior to it being formally 
approved by the Safer Leeds Executive in September 2012.   

 
1.3 The Scrutiny Board agreed to undertake this piece of work as a matter of 

priority via working group meetings during July and August to which all Board 
Members would be invited to attend. 

 
1.4 Working group meetings took place on 17th July 2012 and 14th August.  During 

these meetings, discussions were held with the Chief Officer for Community 
Safety and the Head of Community Safety  Partnerships (Safer Leeds) 
surrounding the objectives of the business plan and its content nearing 
completion.   

 
1.5 An initial draft of the plan was considered during the scrutiny working group 

meeting in July.  Following this meeting, the Safer Leeds Executive received 
verbal feedback of the issues arising from the working group’s discussion.  An 
updated version of the draft was then considered at the scrutiny working group 
meeting in August. 

 
1.6 This report presents the agreed view of the Safer and Stronger Communities 

Scrutiny Board in relation to the draft Leeds Community Safety Business Plan.  
The Board has requested that these comments are formally considered by the 
Safer Leeds Executive prior to it approving the Plan. 

 
2.0 Observations, Conclusions and Recommendations 
 
2.1 As the business plan is split into nine separate sections, the views of the 

Scrutiny Board in relation to each individual section are set out below. 
 

Chairs Statement 
 
2.2 The Scrutiny Board acknowledges the statement made by the Chair of the 

Safer Leeds Partnership in introducing the business plan and also inviting the 
public to contact the partnership with any comments, suggestions or concerns 

Page 33



Appendix 2 

 

they may have about the work of the partnership.   The Scrutiny Board does 
not wish to suggest any changes to this section. 

 
Introduction to Safer Leeds 

 
2.3 The Scrutiny Board does not wish to suggest any changes to this section as it 

clearly sets out the governance arrangements for Safer Leeds and highlights 
the partnership’s ambition, desired outcome and commitments in accordance 
with the City Priority Plan. 

 
Performance and Key Facts 

 
2.4 This section includes a performance table highlighting the level of recorded 

crime across a ten year period for total offences and the most problematic 
offence categories.  The Scrutiny Board is pleased to note that following its 
initial request, the definition of ‘acquisitive crime’ has now been included 
alongside this table.   

 
2.5 In acknowledging the steady and sustained reduction in the total numbers of 

recorded crimes in Leeds over the last 10 years, the Scrutiny Board is pleased 
to note that the narrative surrounding the performance table now makes 
reference to the move towards increased partnership working, improved use of 
intelligence and better deployment of resources (including the targeted 
investment made in areas such as burglary reduction).  The Scrutiny Board 
recognises that these are contributing factors in achieving such reductions and 
therefore needed to be acknowledged alongside the performance data. 

 
2.6 The Scrutiny Board does not wish to make any other suggested changes to 

this section. 
 

Recent Achievements 
 
2.7 This section seeks to briefly demonstrate where the Safer Leeds Partnership 

has delivered integrated services to customers.   
 
2.8 Within this section, it states that there is increasing public and partnership 

concerns around the sexual exploitation of children, which has led to a multi-
agency approach in identifying and supporting victims and targeting offenders 
engaging in such activities.   

 
2.9 Within the ‘performance and key facts’ section of the plan, reference is also 

made that vulnerable young people, including those in care or in chaotic family 
homes, and those who regularly go missing from home or care, can be 
targeted by abusers.  Whilst an increase in the reporting of child sexual 
exploitation incidents nationally has clearly had an impact in terms of raising 
the profile of this problem, the Scrutiny Board recommends that further 
narrative is added within this section to underline why there is an increased 
cause for concern locally. 

 

Page 34



Appendix 2 

 

2.10 The Scrutiny Board acknowledges that the Safer Leeds Partnership has 
identified child sexual exploitation as a priority area for 2013/14, as highlighted 
within the business plan under ‘partnership expectations’.  The Scrutiny Board 
has also identified this as a potential piece of scrutiny work in the future.  In 
recognition of the cross-cutting nature of this piece of work due to the 
associated links with the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board and Health and 
Wellbeing Board, the Scrutiny Board will explore how best to approach this with 
other relevant Scrutiny Boards in the future. 

 
Recommendation 1 
Where reference is made within the ‘recent achievements’ section of the 
business plan to the increasing public and partnership concerns around 
the sexual exploitation of children, further narrative should be added to 
underline why there is an increased cause for concern locally. 

 
Partnership Expectations 

 
2.11 Within this section, the Scrutiny Board is pleased to note that following its initial 

request, the partnership’s priorities for 2013/14 no longer make reference to 
particular localities of concern.  The Scrutiny Board considered that such 
references could be misinterpreted by the public in terms of the partnership’s 
commitments and allocation of resources and therefore suggested that they be 
removed from the plan. 

 
2.12 The Scrutiny Board is also pleased to note that where reference is made within 

this section to the vision of Leeds Initiative, the public are now signposted to 
the relevant section of the plan where they can seek further clarity of the role of 
Leeds Initiative and other governance arrangements if necessary. 

 
Safer Leeds Partnership – Our Priorities 2013/14 

 
2.13 The Scrutiny Board notes that this particular section had been added following 

the initial version of the draft plan.  As the purpose of this new section is to 
provide further narrative surrounding the partnership’s priorities, this is 
welcomed by the Scrutiny Board. 

 
2.14 Linked to the partnership’s priority to effectively tackle and reduce anti-social 

behaviour, particular reference is made within this section to the role of the new 
multi-agency Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team and the positive impact this 
has had in dealing with ASB complaints.  Whilst the previous section of the 
plan makes specific reference to the partnership’s priority to extend multi-
agency approaches to ASB and also noise nuisance, there is no reference to 
noise nuisance within this particular section. 

 
2.15 In acknowledging that noise nuisance represents a substantial proportion of 

complaints made by the public, the Scrutiny Board recommends that further 
narrative is added to reiterate the partnership’s commitment to find better 
solutions for people experiencing domestic noise problems, which is reflective 
in the recent transfer of staff from Environmental Health to the Leeds Anti-
Social Behaviour Team. 

Page 35



Appendix 2 

 

Recommendation 2 
That further narrative is added to the ‘Safer Leeds Partnership – Our 
Priorities 2013/14’ section of the plan to reiterate the partnership’s 
commitment to find better solutions for people experiencing domestic 
noise problems, which is reflective in the recent transfer of staff from 
Environmental Health to the Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team. 

 
Financial Budget 

 
2.16 Within this section, the Scrutiny Board is pleased to note that following its initial 

request, a further pie chart will be added to illustrate the different funding 
sources for Safer Leeds.  The Scrutiny Board does not wish to make any other 
suggested changes to this section. 

 
Changing Landscape 

 
2.17 As part of the changing landscape, the Scrutiny Board recommends that 

reference is also made to the role of the new Police and Crime Panel within 
this section. 

 
Recommendation 3 
That reference is made to the role of the new Police and Crime Panel 
within the ‘changing landscape’ section of the business plan. 

 
Our City Priorities & Governance 

 
2.18 The Scrutiny Board is happy that this section clarifies the role of Leeds 

Initiative and the five strategic partnership boards in delivering the key 
outcomes and priorities set out within the City Priority Plan.  The Scrutiny 
Board does not wish to suggest any changes to this section. 

 
Appendix – Leeds Community Safety Services 

 
2.19 The Scrutiny Board is happy that this section provides further clarity of the role 

of existing community safety services and does not wish to suggest any 
changes to this section. 

 
Other observations made by the Scrutiny Board: 

 
2.20 In the development of any plan, it is vital to acknowledge the target audience.  

Local community safety business plans are designed to be high level plans 
used to articulate the community safety landscape for each of the relevant 
districts to prospective Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) candidates and 
members of the public.   

 
2.21 In view of this, the Scrutiny Board set out to ensure that the Leeds Community 

Safety Business Plan accurately reflects and clearly articulates local 
community safety priorities and demonstrates the effectiveness of the activity it 
wishes the PCC to support.  However, the Scrutiny Board is also mindful that, 
as a public facing document, the business plan needs to be succinct and not 

Page 36



Appendix 2 

 

heavily overloaded with performance related data that the public may find 
difficult to digest. 

 
2.22 The Scrutiny Board acknowledges that further work will continue by the Safer 

Leeds Executive to ensure that the business plan will be accompanied with 
supportive performance related data, which will be made available to the 
successful PCC candidate.  The Board also acknowledges that a number of 
existing strategies have been used to inform the draft Leeds Community Safety 
Business Plan.  These are as follows: 

 

• The Leeds Burglary Reduction Strategy (2011 – 2015) 

• Leeds Anti Social Behaviour – Quest Review 2010/11 

• The Leeds Domestic Violence Action Plan 2012/13 

• The Leeds Reducing Re-Offending Plan 2010 – 13 

• The Drug Recover Action Plan 2012/13 

• The Leeds Alcohol Harm Reduction Plan 2011 – 2015 

• Corporate Performance reports – Anti-Social Behaviour and Crime 
Reduction 

 
2.23 The Scrutiny Board also recognises the importance of having a consistent 

approach across West Yorkshire and is therefore pleased to note that the 
Leeds Community Safety Business Plan is to act as a template to provide a 
common framework for the other districts.   

 
2.24 Whilst the use of plain English is important, the Scrutiny Board accepts that 

some community safety language is unavoidable within the business plan 
when making reference to crime and disorder activities and existing support 
programmes.  

 
2.25 The Scrutiny Board is pleased to note that following its initial request, 

definitions have been provided in relation to certain crime and disorder 
terminology, such as ‘acquisitive crime’.  However, the Scrutiny Board further 
recommends that the use of abbreviations within the plan is minimised as 
much as possible.  Where these do occur, a full definition should be provided 
within each of the relevant sections of the plan for ease of reference. 

 
Recommendation 4 
As a public facing document, the use of abbreviations within the 
business plan should be minimised as much as possible.  Where these 
do occur, a full definition should be provided within each of the relevant 
sections of the plan for ease of reference. 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance) / Director 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 10th December 2012 

Subject: 2012/13 Q2 Performance Report 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion 
and integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for the 
council and city related to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board.   

Recommendations 

Members are recommended to 

• Note the Q2 performance information and the issues which have been 
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to 
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

 

Report author: Heather Pinches / 
Debra Scott 

Tel:  274638 / 75951 

Agenda Item 8

Page 39



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter two performance data 
for 2012-13 which provides an update on progress in delivering the relevant 
priorities in the Council Business Plan 2011-15 and City Priority Plan 2011-15.   

2 Background information 

2.2 The City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 is the city-wide partnership plan which sets 
out the key outcomes and priorities to be delivered by the council and its partners.  
There are 17 priorities which are split across the 5 strategic partnerships who are 
responsible for ensuring the delivery of these agreed priorities.   

2.3 The Council Business Plan 2011 to 2015 sets out the priorities for the council - it 
has two elements - five cross council priorities aligned to the council’s values and 
a set of directorate priorities and targets.     

2.4 Members will note that the delivery of City Priority Plan priorities are shared with 
partners across the city while the Council Business Plan sets out the Council’s 
contribution to these shared priorities.  This report provides an overview of the 
performance relating to both plans enabling the Scrutiny board to directly 
challenge the council’s performance as well as seeking to influence and challenge 
partners contributions through existing partnership arrangements. 

2.5 This report includes 2 appendices: 

• Appendix 1 – Performance Reports for the City Priority Plan Priorities 

• Appendix 2 – Directorate Priorities and Indicators relevant to the Board 

3 Main issues 

Quarter 4 Performance Summary 

City Priority Plan 

3.1 There are 4 priorities in the City Priority Plan relevant to Safer and Stronger 
Communities Board and of these 3 are assessed as green and 1 amber.  The 
amber priority is:  

• Increase a sense of belonging that build cohesive and harmonious 
communities – the performance report states that overall progress in Quarter 
2 has been steady, and there is confidence that we know where activity needs 
to be targeted to strengthen communities.  Progress is assessed as amber 
however, to note the challenging economic conditions in communities, and the 
funding available to partners to support the approach.  

Key Performance Highlights 

3.2 Burglary: performance continues to improve against more stretching burglary 
reduction targets: in the 12 months to the end of September recorded offences 
were down 36%.  All three policing divisions are on track to meet targets and in 

Page 40



 

 

terms of priority wards this is the first quarter that all wards including Hyde Park & 
Woodhouse have seen a 12-month reduction.  On-going performance monitoring 
suggests that the more stretching target agreed in September is achievable.  This 
reflects the combined and sustained partnership activity in the area that needs to 
continue with the new Police & Crime Commissioner’s governance arrangements.   

3.3 Anti-Social Behaviour: Customer satisfaction data for the multi-agency ASB 
service has continued its improvement trajectory from 2008/09.  But most notably 
performance at Q2 has shown a significant improvement both for case outcomes 
(90%) and the overall service (94%).  Numbers of reported ASB cases are also 
continuing to rise as public confidence in the service improves. 

3.4 Street Cleanliness: since 2011, the service has undergone a radical overhaul 
with the implementation of a locality working approach.  Included in this is 
delegation to Area Committees with the introduction of local service level 
agreements and ward plans to ensure services are more responsive to local 
needs.  On the whole, confidence in the service has increased and there is 
recognition that the service is more accessible and accountable than it has been 
in the past.  Through regular communication and partnership working, 
stakeholders have a broader understanding of the limitations of the service and 
the need to prioritise finite resources.  A revised indicator has been developed 
which provides similar information to that reported under the previous statutory NI 
195 indicator, but data is collected in a more cost effective way.  Performance for 
2011/12 reported in line with the previous NI 195 indicator has been reworked to 
reflect the new indicator definition and methodology to provide a relevant baseline 
position, and performance this quarter is showing an improved position on the 
baseline, with 91.5% streets assessed as clean, and is currently above the 5% 
improvement target set for this year. 

Council Business Plan 

3.5 Directorate Priorities and Indicators – there are 8 directorate priorities relevant to 
the Board of which 3 are amber and 5 are green.  The amber priorities are: 

•••• Improve refuse service reliability 

•••• Improve recycling rates 

•••• Deliver an approach to locality working with improved community 
engagement and more local decision making 

3.6 In terms of performance indicators 3 are green, 1 is amber and 1 is red.  The red 
indicator is: 

•••• Number of missed bins per 100,000 collected (100.79):  The service 
provided has increased in terms of both numbers (>2m collections per 
month) and complexity, with an expanded collection of different 
recyclables.  At quarter 2 the residual waste (Black) bin performance 
improved again this quarter (54.88 missed) and is very close to the 
50/100,000 best practice quality standard; garden waste (brown) bin 
performance (181.03 missed) has also shown improvement over the last 
quarter.  However, the recycling (green) bin performance (180.36 missed) 
deteriorating compared to Q1, although the long-term trend is one of 

Page 41



 

 

improvement against an ambitious quality standard.  However, more 
recent data for October is showing a significant improvement with the 
overall missed bin rate at 84.61 per 100,000.  Residual performance has 
worsened slightly (62.18) but is still holding well, and recycling (144.41) & 
garden (104.99) have improved significantly from Q2. 

3.7 Recycling rates overall increased during Q2 with the best ever rate of 48% seen in 
July. 

Other issues 

3.8 At Q2 one further potential issue was highlighted and discussed - ash dieback 
disease.  It was noted that Parks and Countryside is proactively taking steps to 
identify possible action should it spread to Leeds.  This includes identifying any 
newly planted woodland which could be affected, monitoring existing woodland 
and briefing the relevant Portfolio holder.   

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 This is an information report and as such does not need to be consulted on with 
the public.  However all performance information is published on the council’s 
website and is available to the public.    

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This is an information report and not a decision so due regard is not relevant.  
However, this report does include an update on equality issues as they relate to 
the various priorities in the report card in appendix 1.   

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city 
priorities in line with the council’s performance management framework.   

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 There are no specific resource implications from this report. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 All performance information is publicly available and is published on the council’s 
website.  This report is an information update providing Scrutiny with a summary 
of performance for the strategic priorities within its remit and as such in not 
subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Performance Report Cards include an update of the key risks and challenges 
for each of the priorities.  This is supported by a comprehensive risk management 

Page 42



 

 

process in the Council to monitor and manage key risks.  These processes also 
link closely with performance management. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for 
the council and city related to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board.  

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are recommended to: 

• Note the Q2 performance information and the issues which have been 
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to 
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 

7.2 Council Business Plan 2011 to 2015 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

: (R
EP

OR
T C

AR
D) 

 
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 J
ul

y 
to

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 
O

ut
co

m
e:

 P
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 fe
el

 s
af

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

op
ul

at
io

n:
 R

es
id

en
ts

 o
f L

ee
ds

 

P
rio

rit
y:

 R
ed

uc
e 

cr
im

e 
le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
im

pa
ct

 a
cr

os
s 

Le
ed

s 
(f

oc
us

 o
n 

bu
rg

la
ry

 r
ed

uc
tio

n)
 

 
 

 
P

ro
gr

es
s:

 

O
B

A
-P

A
T

  S
H

 
1

Wh
y is

 thi
s p

rior
ity?

T
he

 p
ub

lic
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
af

e 
an

d 
fe

el
 s

af
e 

on
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
, 

in
 t

he
 p

la
ce

s 
th

ey
 g

o 
an

d 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 i
n 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ho

m
e.

 B
ur

gl
ar

y 
ha

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

se
qu

en
ce

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 

im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 a
 p

er
so

n’
s 

se
ns

e 
of

 s
af

et
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 d
am

ag
e 

an
d 

lo
ss

 i
nc

ur
re

d.
 

D
om

es
tic

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
le

ve
ls

 in
 L

ee
ds

 r
em

ai
n 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 

Hea
dlin

e in
dic

ato
r "T

u
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

u
rv

e
" 

- 
B

u
rg

la
ry

 D
w

e
ll

in
g

 L
e

e
d

s

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0
0
0

A
pr

M
ar

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 R

a
n
g
e

M
o
n
th

ly
 O

ffe
n
c
e
s

S
e
a
s
o
n
a
lly

 A
d
ju

s
te

d
 T

re
n
d

In
 S

ep
te

m
be

r,
 S

af
er

 L
ee

ds
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 t
he

 7
,0

56
 t

ar
ge

t 
fo

r 
20

12
/1

3 
se

tti
ng

 o
ut

 a
 

re
vi

se
d

stre
tch

ed 
targ

et o
f 

a 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 o

ut
-t

ur
n 

of
 5

,9
99

. 
 T

he
 s

ea
so

na
lly

 a
dj

us
te

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 i

s 
at

 t
he

 l
ow

er
 e

nd
 o

f 
th

e 
M

ile
st

on
e 

R
an

ge
 s

ug
ge

st
in

g 
if 

cu
rr

en
t 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
th

en
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 is
 a

ch
ie

va
bl

e.
 

In
 t

he
 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
to

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

S
ep

te
m

be
r,

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

5,
93

8 
re

co
rd

ed
 

of
fe

nc
es

, d
ow

n 
36

%
 (

3,
27

6 
fe

w
er

 v
ic

tim
s)

.
A

ll 
th

re
e 

po
lic

in
g 

di
vi

si
on

s 
ar

e 
on

 t
ra

ck
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

ta
rg

et
s;

 N
W

L 
do

w
n 

39
.5

%
 

(1
,7

53
 f

ew
er

 v
ic

tim
s)

; 
N

E
L 

~
 d

ow
n 

39
.0

%
 (

1,
46

7 
fe

w
er

 v
ic

tim
s)

 a
nd

 C
&

H
  

do
w

n 
5.

6%
 (

56
 fe

w
er

 v
ic

tim
s)

.

W
a

rd
1
2
 M

o
n
th

 
T

o
ta

l
1
2
 M

o
n
th

 
%

C
h
a
n
g
e

H
y
d

e
 P

a
rk

 &
 W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e
 

4
7
2

-1
3

.9
%

B
u

rm
a
n

to
ft

s
 &

 R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

il
l 

3
4
7

-3
9

.0
%

G
ip

to
n

 &
 H

a
re

h
il

ls
 

3
1
5

-1
9

.9
%

A
rm

le
y
  

3
1
4

-3
5

.9
%

H
e
a
d

in
g

le
y

2
9
8

-4
1

.5
%

K
il

li
n

g
b

e
c
k
 &

 S
e
a
c
ro

ft
 

2
5
5

-3
5

.6
%

K
ir

k
s

ta
ll

2
4
4

-5
2

.3
%

B
ra

m
le

y
 &

 S
ta

n
n

in
g

le
y
 

2
3
3

-5
6

.8
%

C
h

a
p

e
l 

A
ll

e
rt

o
n

 
2
1
5

-5
5

.7
%

T
hi

s 
is

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
qu

ar
te

r 
th

at
 H

yd
e 

P
ar

k 
&

 W
oo

dh
ou

se
 h

as
 s

ee
n 

a 
12

 m
on

th
 

re
du

ct
io

n,
 r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

an
d 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
ac

tiv
ity

. 

Sto
ry 

beh
ind

 th
e b

ase
line

 ~ 
S

af
er

 
Le

ed
s 

ha
s 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

re
se

ar
ch

 o
n 

of
fe

nd
er

s’
 p

at
hw

ay
s 

to
 b

ur
gl

ar
y;

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 i

nt
er

vi
ew

s 
to

 d
at

e 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

no
te

d:
M

os
t 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
tr

av
el

 w
ith

in
 a

 2
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
fr

om
 h

om
e 

to
 c

om
m

it 
an

 o
ffe

nc
e.

 
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
, 

yo
un

ge
r 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
fe

el
 s

af
er

 i
n 

an
 a

re
a 

th
ey

 a
re

 f
am

ili
ar

 w
ith

 
an

d 
w

ill
 s

ta
y 

w
ith

in
 t

he
ir 

‘c
om

fo
rt

 z
on

e’
. 

 M
or

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 b
ur

gl
ar

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 to

 tr
av

el
 fu

rt
he

r 
a 

fie
ld

.
Y

ou
ng

er
 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
se

e 
bu

rg
la

ry
 

as
 

a 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

ea
sy

 
of

fe
nc

e 
th

at
 

of
fe

rs
 

gr
ea

te
r 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
re

w
ar

ds
. 

 O
nl

y 
a 

sm
al

l 
nu

m
be

r 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 o
ffe

nc
es

 a
lo

ne
, 

m
os

t 
te

nd
in

g 
to

 p
re

fe
r 

to
 d

o 
it 

w
ith

 ‘
m

at
es

. 
 T

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

ge
 o

f 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 s
am

pl
e 

gr
ou

p 
co

m
m

itt
in

g 
th

ei
r 

fir
st

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
is

 1
2.

  
M

an
y 

sa
id

 t
ha

t 
bu

rg
la

ry
 is

 li
ke

 a
n 

ad
di

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 g

iv
es

 a
 ‘b

uz
z’

, 
w

ith
 s

om
e 

sa
yi

ng
 it

 is
 a

 h
ar

d 
ha

bi
t 

to
 b

re
ak

. 
 O

nl
y 

so
m

e 
of

 t
he

 m
or

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

er
e 

sa
yi

ng
 

th
at

 t
he

 l
on

ge
r 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

no
w

 b
ei

ng
 i

ss
ue

d 
w

er
e 

be
in

g 
se

en
 a

s 
a 

de
te

rr
en

t.
D

is
po

sa
l 

of
 g

oo
ds

 i
s 

ra
pi

dl
y 

un
de

rt
ak

en
, 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
tim

e 
pe

rio
ds

 b
ei

ng
 w

ith
in

 
20

 m
in

ut
es

 t
o 

1 
ho

ur
, 

an
d 

ea
ch

 o
ffe

nd
er

 h
ad

 n
um

er
ou

s 
bu

ye
rs

 r
ea

dy
 t

o 
ta

ke
 

th
e 

us
ua

l 
st

ol
en

 
go

od
s,

 
su

ch
 

as
 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 

ite
m

s,
 

go
ld

, 
an

d 
je

w
el

le
ry

.

Page 45



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

: (R
EP

OR
T C

AR
D) 

 
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 A
pr

il 
to

 J
un

e 
20

12
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 P

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
sa

fe
 a

nd
 fe

el
 s

af
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
op

ul
at

io
n:

 R
es

id
en

ts
 o

f L
ee

ds
 

P
rio

rit
y:

 R
ed

uc
e 

cr
im

e 
le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
im

pa
ct

 a
cr

os
s 

Le
ed

s 
(f

oc
us

 o
n 

bu
rg

la
ry

 r
ed

uc
tio

n)
 

 
 

 
P

ro
gr

es
s:

 

O
B

A
-P

A
T

  S
H

 
2

Wh
at w

e d
id (

key
 ex

am
ple

s) 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

ct
iv

ity
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

in
 t

he
 l

oc
al

iti
es

 o
f 

co
nc

er
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
fr

om
 

ar
ea

 
co

m
m

itt
ee

s 
an

d 
S

af
er

 
Le

ed
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t 

w
or

k 
ar

ou
nd

 
ta

rg
et

 
ha

rd
en

in
g 

in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 s

tr
ee

ts
, 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 im
m

ob
ili

se
 (

pr
op

er
ty

 m
ar

ki
ng

) 
an

d 
cr

im
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ad

vi
ce

. 
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

O
pt

im
al

 
in

 
N

W
L 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 
be

 
re

fin
ed

 
an

d 
ba

ck
ed

 
up

 
w

ith
 

ta
sk

in
g 

of
 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t 
of

 
lo

ca
l 

re
si

de
nt

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
su

pe
r 

co
co

on
in

g.
  

N
E

L 
ha

ve
 a

pp
lie

d 
th

e 
pr

ed
ic

tiv
e 

el
em

en
t 

of
 t

he
 m

od
el

 a
nd

 a
re

 
ta

sk
in

g 
of

fic
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

ei
r 

lo
ca

l 
hu

b 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

hi
gh

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 i

n 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
ar

ea
s 

at
 k

ey
 ti

m
es

. 
B

y 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 Q
2,

 t
he

 B
ur

gl
ar

y 
T

as
k 

F
or

ce
 h

ad
 i

nv
es

tig
at

ed
/d

is
ru

pt
ed

 2
2 

O
rg

an
is

ed
 C

rim
e 

G
ro

up
s.

 A
s 

a 
di

re
ct

 r
es

ul
t 

of
 o

ng
oi

ng
 C

P
S

 i
nv

ol
ve

m
en

t 
de

liv
er

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i
n 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
se

cu
tio

ns
, 

35
 P

P
O

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 g
iv

en
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l p
ris

on
er

 s
en

te
nc

es
.  

T
he

 'G
ol

d 
S

ta
nd

ar
d'

  
(a

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 

co
de

 o
f 

co
nd

uc
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

fa
ce

 t
o 

fa
ce

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 s
ec

on
d 

ha
nd

 p
re

ci
ou

s 
m

et
al

 
an

d 
je

w
el

le
ry

) 
w

ill
 b

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 in

 la
te

 O
ct

ob
er

 to
 h

el
p 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
f 

sh
op

s 
th

at
 b

uy
 a

nd
 s

el
l 

go
ld

. 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 l
eg

iti
m

at
e 

tr
ad

er
s 

an
d 

en
ab

le
 

th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

to
 c

om
e 

do
w

n 
ha

rd
 o

n 
th

os
e 

bu
yi

ng
 s

to
le

n 
go

od
s.

 
T

he
 L

ee
ds

 D
es

is
ta

nc
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 t
ar

ge
ts

 a
nd

 t
ra

ck
s 

yo
un

g 
bu

rg
la

rs
 a

s 
th

ey
 

pr
og

re
ss

 f
ro

m
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 w

ith
 Y

O
S

 t
o 

th
e 

P
ro

ba
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 d

ur
in

g 
th

ei
r 

‘T
ra

ns
iti

on
 t

o 
A

du
lth

oo
d’

. 
 I

nd
iv

id
ua

l t
ra

ns
fe

rs
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 Y
O

S
 t

o 
th

e 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
on

vi
ct

ed
 o

f 
bu

rg
la

ry
 a

re
 r

ou
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

is
 s

in
gl

e 
po

in
t 

of
 c

on
ta

ct
.  

A
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

is
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ad

e 
to

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 if

 t
he

y 
re

m
ai

n 
w

ith
 

th
is

 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

w
or

ke
r 

or
 

if 
an

ot
he

r 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pa

th
w

ay
 

is
 

m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

. 
 T

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

as
el

oa
d 

is
 2

9 
an

d 
to

 d
at

e 
7 

or
de

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

. 
P

rio
r 

to
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
th

er
e 

w
as

 n
o 

B
ur

gl
ar

y 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

ca
se

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 m

an
ag

ed
.

T
he

 ‘I
t O

nl
y 

T
ak

es
 a

 M
in

ut
e’

 c
am

pa
ig

n 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

to
 b

e 
ut

ili
se

d 
in

 Q
2 

th
ro

ug
h 

 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t e

ve
nt

s,
 fa

ce
 to

 fa
ce

 c
on

ta
ct

 w
ith

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 a

nd
 

so
ci

al
 n

et
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ct
iv

ity
; r

ep
ea

tin
g 

cr
im

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

m
es

sa
ge

s.
   

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

U
ni

ve
rs

iti
es

 &
 C

ol
le

ge
s 

op
en

 d
ay

s 
an

d 
F

re
sh

er
s 

F
ai

rs
 jo

in
t m

es
sa

ge
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 d

is
se

m
in

at
ed

 to
 n

ew
 s

tu
de

nt
s 

an
d 

th
os

e 
m

ov
in

g 
in

to
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
re

nt
ed

 
se

ct
or

 fo
r 

th
e 

fir
st

 ti
m

e.
 

T
he

 s
in

gl
e 

yo
ut

h 
cu

st
od

y 
su

ite
 f

or
 L

ee
ds

, 
at

 S
ta

in
be

ck
 P

ol
ic

e 
S

ta
tio

n,
 w

ill
 b

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 i

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
12

. 
 T

hi
s 

ne
w

 w
ay

 o
f 

w
or

ki
ng

 f
or

 Y
O

S
 s

ta
ff,

 w
ho

 
ha

ve
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
en

ga
ge

d 
w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

m
ai

nl
y 

on
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

as
is

, 
w

ill
 

in
vo

lv
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

ne
ed

s 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
. 

T
he

ir 
pr

es
en

ce
 a

t 
th

e 
po

lic
e 

st
at

io
n 

w
ill

 
im

pr
ov

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
Y

O
S

, 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
de

ci
si

on
s 

an
d 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
di

sp
os

al
s.

  
T

he
 

pr
oj

ec
t 

w
ill

 b
e 

ex
am

in
in

g 
 w

ay
s 

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 y

ou
th

 j
us

tic
e 

sy
st

em
 i

n 
Le

ed
s 

ca
n 

be
 m

or
e 

re
st

or
at

iv
e 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

ve
 t

o 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 

vi
ct

im
s.

 R
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 th
e 

Y
O

S
 te

am
 a

t S
ta

in
be

ck
 w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 w
he

re
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

th
ou

gh
t t

o 
be

 a
t r

is
k 

of
 o

ffe
nd

in
g.

Wh
at W

ork
ed/

Les
son

s L
ear

nt 
A

 p
ilo

t b
et

w
ee

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

nd
 S

ea
cr

of
t H

ou
si

ng
 O

ffi
ce

 a
nd

 
P

C
S

O
s 

ha
s 

se
en

 w
ee

kl
y 

vi
su

al
 a

ud
its

 in
 to

p 
bu

rg
la

ry
 s

tr
ee

ts
 b

ei
ng

 ta
rg

et
ed

 
fo

r 
cl

ea
n 

up
s 

an
d 

ac
tio

n.
  I

n 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ar
ea

, 9
 C

C
T

V
 c

am
er

as
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
in

st
al

le
d.

New
 ac

tion
s 

Im
pl

em
en

t t
he

 A
ut

um
n/

W
in

te
r 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
~

 U
ni

nv
ite

d/
U

nw
el

co
m

e 
G

ue
st

 
C

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 t
he

 P
riv

at
e 

R
en

te
d 

S
ec

to
r 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
f 

se
cu

rit
y 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

w
id

er
 H

ou
si

ng
 F

or
um

 t
o 

en
su

re
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

re
du

ct
io

n 
re

m
ai

ns
 a

 p
rio

rit
y.

W
or

k 
on

 
th

e 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
ta

sk
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

ar
ou

nd
 

‘u
p 

an
d 

co
m

in
g 

no
m

in
al

s’
 a

nd
 li

nk
s 

to
 th

e 
F

am
ili

es
 F

irs
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
Jo

in
t 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 f
or

 t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 p

ris
on

er
s’

 r
el

ea
se

s 
in

 
th

e 
ru

n 
up

 to
 X

m
as

. 
A

 r
es

ul
ts

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 im

pa
ct

 in
iti

at
iv

e 
w

ith
 L

ee
ds

 C
ro

w
n 

C
ou

rt
 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 Q
3.

 
Info

rma
tion

/int
elli

gen
ce 

req
uire

me
nt

O
ng

oi
ng

 i
de

nt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 o
rg

an
is

ed
 c

rim
e 

gr
ou

ps
 i

nv
ol

ve
d 

in
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

an
d/

or
 

ha
nd

lin
g 

of
 s

to
le

n 
go

od
s.

Iss
ues

/Ris
ks

T
he

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
to

 s
us

ta
in

 m
om

en
tu

m
, 

en
su

rin
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 f
oc

us
se

d 
on

 
th

e 
de

si
re

d 
ou

tc
om

e 
an

d 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
am

bi
tio

us
 s

tr
et

ch
 ta

rg
et

.

Page 46



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

:
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 J
ul

y 
– 

S
ep

t 2
01

2 
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 T

he
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f L
ee

ds
 fe

el
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 
 

 
 

P
op

ul
at

io
n:

 R
es

id
en

ts
 o

f L
ee

ds
 

P
rio

rit
y:

A
nt

i-S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

P
ro

gr
es

s:

O
B

A
-P

A
T

1

Wh
y is

 thi
s a

 Pr
iori

ty?
A

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r 

ca
n 

th
re

at
en

 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 

or
 

m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
, 

sa
fe

ty
 

or
 

se
cu

rit
y 

of
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s,

 
gr

ou
ps

 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

LA
S

B
T

 
 

ta
ck

le
 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 
at

 
th

e 
ea

rli
es

t 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 

pr
ev

en
tio

n,
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t. 

LA
S

B
T

 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 
to

 
Le

ed
s 

ci
ty

 
C

ou
nc

ils
 

‘C
ity

 
P

rio
rit

ie
s 

P
la

n’
 o

f 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 i
n 

cr
im

e 
an

d 
di

so
rd

er
, 

ta
ck

lin
g 

A
nt

i-
so

ci
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

st
ro

ng
er

 c
oh

es
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

Key
 Ind

ica
tor

 – P
erc

ept
ion

 of 
Cri

me
 Su

rve
y

T
he

 m
ea

su
re

 b
el

ow
 is

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 w

ith
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

 o
f 

A
S

B
, 

an
d 

ar
e 

N
O

T
 

re
fle

ct
iv

e 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 
T

he
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 

fr
om

 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

W
Y

P
A

 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

su
rv

ey
 ~

 in
 t

he
 la

st
 1

2 
m

on
th

s 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

su
rv

ey
ed

 6
,0

73
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s 
ac

ro
ss

 L
ee

ds
. 

"
T

u
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

u
rv

e
"
 -

 A
S

B
 L

e
e
d

s
P

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

le
v

e
ls

 o
f 

d
is

o
rd

e
r/

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
in

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a
l 

a
re

a
 h

a
v

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n

th
s

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

Apr

Mar

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3

% Agree

T
he

 2
00

8/
09

 b
as

el
in

e 
ra

ng
e 

w
as

 1
6.

94
%

 o
f 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

ag
re

ei
ng

 i
t 

ha
d 

go
t 

w
or

se
 i

n 
th

e 
la

st
 1

2 
m

on
th

s.
  

T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 l
ev

el
 i

s 
12

.6
2%

 (
to

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

S
ep

t 
20

12
).

  
T

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
tr

en
d 

is
 d

ow
nw

ar
ds

, 
al

th
ou

gh
 t

he
re

 i
s 

so
m

e 
va

ria
tio

n 
in

 
qu

ar
te

rs
 a

nd
 b

et
w

ee
n 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s.

Key
 Ind

ica
tor 

– L
AS

BT
 Su

rve
y

C
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

da
ta

 is
 c

ol
la

te
d 

at
 c

as
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

cu
st

om
er

 (
vi

ct
im

) 
su

rv
ey

s,
 w

hi
ch

 s
ee

k 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 v
ar

io
us

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g;

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 
2
0
0

8
/9

 
2
0
0

9
/1

0
 

2
0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

C
a

s
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
.

6
1
.6

%
6
6
.1

%
6
0
.3

%
7
9
.9

%
9
0
.0

%
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

7
2
.2

%
7
3
.7

%
7
0
.4

%
8
3
.0

%
9
4
.2

%
 

Sto
ry b

ehi
nd 

the
 ba

sel
ine

 (LA
SB

T c
ase

s)
P

rio
r 

to
 i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 L
ee

ds
 A

nt
i-S

oc
ia

l 
B

eh
av

io
ur

 T
ea

m
 

(L
A

S
B

T
) 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
11

 A
S

B
 w

as
 r

es
po

nd
ed

 t
o 

by
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
ag

en
ci

es
 (

A
LM

O
’s

, 
A

S
B

U
, P

ol
ic

e 
et

c)
 e

ac
h 

w
or

ki
ng

 to
 d

iff
er

in
g 

th
re

sh
ol

ds
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 

D
at

a 
co

lla
te

d 
du

rin
g 

20
12

/1
3 

Q
ua

rt
er

 2
 is

 s
ho

w
in

g 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

nt
in

ua
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

on
 L

A
S

B
T

’s
 b

as
el

in
e 

ye
ar

 w
hi

ch
 i

n 
tu

rn
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 o
n 

fo
rm

er
 A

S
B

U
 

cl
os

ed
 c

as
e 

su
rv

ey
 d

at
a 

(P
re

-A
pr

il 
20

11
).

  

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

kn
ow

n 
fa

ct
or

s 
dr

iv
in

g 
th

e 
ba

se
lin

e ?
C

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 c

as
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

is
 i

nf
lu

en
ce

d 
by

 m
an

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

vi
ct

im
s 

ow
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 th
e 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 o

f t
he

 c
as

e.
 

LA
S

B
T

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
ar

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

fo
cu

se
d.

 
F

or
 

ex
am

pl
e,

 
in

 
su

pp
or

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

in
g 

vi
ct

im
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
, 

ex
pl

or
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

so
lu

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 t
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
 n

ee
ds

. 
LA

S
B

T
 w

or
ks

 t
o 

re
so

lv
e 

ca
se

s 
at

 t
he

 e
ar

lie
st

 
op

po
rt

un
ity

. 
C

us
to

m
er

 f
ee

db
ac

k 
su

gg
es

ts
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

is
 w

or
ki

ng
. 

R
ec

en
t 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 i
nc

lu
de

s;
  “T

he 
sup

por
t an

d c
ont

act
 fro

m S
hei

la (
LAS

BT)
 an

d A
lista

ir 
(Vic

tim
 Su

ppo
rt) w

as 
am

azin
g a

nd 
out

 did
 my

 ex
pec

tati
ons

 . I 
hav

e g
rea

t re
spe

ct 
for 

She
ila 

she
 wa

s m
y li

fe l
ine

 in 
a lo

t of
 wa

ys 
thro

ugh
 a 

tim
e th

at w
as 

mo
re 

diff
icul

t th
an 

wor
ds.

” (L
A

S
B

T
 S

ou
th

, S
ep

te
m

be
r)

 

Page 47



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

:
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 J
ul

y 
– 

S
ep

t 2
01

2 
 

O
ut

co
m

e:
 T

he
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f L
ee

ds
 fe

el
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 
 

 
 

P
op

ul
at

io
n:

 R
es

id
en

ts
 o

f L
ee

ds
 

P
rio

rit
y:

A
nt

i-S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

P
ro

gr
es

s:

O
B

A
-P

A
T

2

LA
S

B
T

 d
at

a 
du

rin
g 

20
12

/1
3 

ye
ar

 t
o 

da
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
dr

aw
n 

fr
om

 o
n 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 
31

0 
su

rv
ey

s 
fr

om
 a

 s
am

pl
e 

of
 4

91
 n

am
ed

 v
ic

tim
s 

(a
n 

ov
er

al
l r

es
po

ns
e 

ra
te

 o
f 6

3.
1%

) 
gi

vi
ng

 a
 9

5%
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 le
ve

l w
ith

 a
 3

.3
8%

 c
on

fid
en

ce
 in

te
rv

al
.  

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 A
ct

iv
e 

C
as

e 
vi

ct
im

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 w
he

re
 i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

is
 

re
co

rd
ed

,
10.

5%
 o

f 
vi

ct
im

s 
ar

e 
B

la
ck

 M
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
ci

ty
. 

64.
5%

 o
f 

vi
ct

im
s 

ar
e 

fe
m

al
e.

 O
nl

y 
2 

vi
ct

im
s 

ar
e 

ag
ed

 u
nd

er
 1

8.
 A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 A

ct
iv

e 
C

as
e 

pe
rp

et
ra

to
r 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 
10.

0%
 

of
 

A
S

B
 

pe
rp

et
ra

to
rs

 
ar

e 
B

la
ck

 
M

in
or

ity
 

et
hn

ic
ity

.
 49

.0%
 o

f 
pe

rp
et

ra
to

rs
 a

re
 f

em
al

e.
 8

0 
pe

rp
et

ra
to

rs
 w

er
e 

ag
ed

 u
nd

er
 

18
. Wh
at w

e d
id

LA
S

B
T

 s
ee

ks
 t

o 
re

sp
on

d 
to

 A
S

B
 u

si
ng

 a
 c

ra
dl

e 
to

 g
ra

ve
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

th
at

 e
ns

ur
es

 
ca

se
s 

ar
e 

al
lo

ca
te

d 
re

fle
ct

in
g 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 
ha

rm
 

ce
nt

re
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

. 
R

ep
or

te
d 

pr
ob

le
m

s 
ar

e 
ta

ck
le

d 
at

 t
he

 e
ar

lie
st

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

, 
w

ith
 v

ul
ne

ra
bi

lit
ie

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

at
 t

he
 o

ut
se

t 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
up

po
rt

 p
ro

vi
de

d.
 E

ac
h 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n 
is

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 
in

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

ith
 

cl
ea

r 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
th

at
 

ar
e 

un
de

rp
in

ne
d 

by
 

cu
st

om
er

 f
oc

us
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 w

ith
 f

ee
db

ac
k 

re
ce

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
at

 
bo

th
 4

 w
ee

ks
 a

nd
 c

as
e 

cl
os

ur
e.

  

R
ev

is
io

ns
 t

o 
en

qu
iry

 lo
gg

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

in
co

rr
ec

t 
lo

gg
in

g 
of

 t
en

an
cy

 i
ss

ue
s 

ag
ai

ns
t 

LA
S

B
T

 e
nq

ui
ry

 t
yp

es
. 

 I
t 

is
 e

nv
is

ag
ed

 a
s 

w
e 

w
or

k 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ye

ar
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 t
he

 
sp

lit
 b

et
w

ee
n 

re
po

rt
ed

 te
na

nc
y 

an
d 

A
S

B
 is

su
es

.

Q
1

11
/1

2
Q

2
11

/1
2

Q
3

11
/1

2
Q

4
11

/1
2

Q
1

12
/1

3
Q

2
12

/1
3

Q
3

12
/1

3
Q

4
12

/1
3

E
nq

ui
rie

s 
lo

gg
ed

 
on

 
S

ie
be

l 
un

de
r 

LA
S

B
T

1
0

1
1

9
1

6
6

4
5

7
2

5
7

2
5

9
5

8

A
nn

ua
l T

ot
al

3
2

9
7

(3
3

6
6

 p
ro

je
c
te

d
) 

W
es

t Y
or

ks
hi

re
 P

ol
ic

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 1

19
15

 A
S

B
 c

al
ls

 b
et

w
ee

n 
A

pr
il 

an
d 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
2 

of
 w

hi
ch

 4
53

 c
al

ls
 w

er
e 

lin
ke

d 
to

 e
xi

st
in

g 
LA

S
B

T
 c

as
es

 a
nd

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 6
6 

ne
w

 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

in
to

 L
A

S
B

T
.

D
ur

in
g 

20
11

/1
2 

LA
S

B
T

 o
pe

ne
d 

12
48

 n
ew

 c
as

es
, 

a 
21

.8
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
n 

21
01

0/
11

 
fig

ur
es

.

Q
1

11
/1

2
Q

2
11

/1
2

Q
3

11
/1

2
Q

4
11

/1
2

Q
1

12
/1

3
Q2 12/

13
Q

3
12

/1
3

Q
4

12
/1

3

A
S

B
 c

as
es

 o
pe

ne
d 

by
 L

A
S

B
T

*
3

3
5

3
5

4
2

5
1

3
0

8
3

3
1

3
4

0

A
nn

ua
l T

ot
al

1
2

4
8

(1
3

4
2

p
ro

je
c
te

d
)

Wh
at W

ork
ed/

Les
son

s L
ear

nt 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ca
se

 d
ur

at
io

n 
da

ta
 (

du
ra

tio
ns

 h
av

in
g 

re
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 a
 

pr
e-

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
(A

S
B

U
) 

fig
ur

e 
of

 2
41

 d
ay

s 
to

 le
ss

 th
an

 1
50

 c
al

en
da

r 
da

ys
) 

 

New
 ac

tion
s 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 th
is

 s
uc

ce
ss

 th
re

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
ke

y 
ac

tio
ns

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

ur
su

ed
: 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
T

ea
m

 
st

af
f 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 

in
to

 
LA

S
B

T
 

re
co

gn
is

in
g 

no
is

e 
nu

is
an

ce
 is

 o
fte

n 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
n 

A
S

B
 is

su
e.

 

W
es

t 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 P
ol

ic
e,

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

re
pe

at
 l

oc
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

vi
ct

im
s,

 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
an

d 
en

su
re

 
LA

S
B

T
 

pr
oa

ct
iv

el
y 

re
sp

on
ds

 to
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 A
S

B
 is

su
es

.

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

W
hi

te
 

P
ap

er
 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
A

S
B

 
ar

e 
no

w
 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 
to

 
be

 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 2
01

4.
 

Iss
ues

/Ris
ks

M
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
to

 2
01

2/
13

 o
ur

 k
ey

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
is

 t
o 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

bu
ild

 o
n 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 o

ut
co

m
es

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
du

rin
g 

20
11

/1
2.

Page 48



M
e

e
ti

n
g

: 
S

a
fe

r 
a

n
d

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 B

o
a

rd
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
th

e
 c

it
y
 i
s
 c

le
a

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

lc
o

m
in

g
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

re
 c

le
a

n
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
C

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

re
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 c

it
e

d
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 
k
e

y
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
y
 l
iv

e
 i
s
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g

. 
C

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 c
a

n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
 

s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

w
e

ll-
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
e

lo
n

g
in

g
; 

c
o

n
v
e

rs
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 r

u
b
b

is
h

 c
a

n
 f

o
s
te

r 
a

 s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

n
d

 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e

, 
th

is
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 g

ra
ff

it
i,
 f

ly
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
:

G
re

e
n

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

T
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 a
n

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
, 
a
re

 o
ft

e
n

 s
e

e
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 a
s
 a

n
 i
n

d
ic

to
r 

o
f 

h
o

w
 w

e
ll 

a
n

 a
re

a
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 a

s
 a

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
, 

v
is

it
 o

r 
b

ri
n

g
 u

p
 a

 f
a

m
ily

. 
M

a
n

y
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 h

a
v
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

tt
a
c
h

 t
o

 c
le

a
n

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 a

re
 a

 k
e

y
 f

a
c
to

r 
in

 h
o

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 v
ie

w
 

th
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
u

n
c
il.

 L
it
te

r,
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
a

n
d

 f
ly

 t
ip

p
in

g
 i
f 

p
re

s
e
n

t 
a

re
 h

ig
h

ly
 v

is
ib

le
 a

n
d

 c
a

n
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
ly

 u
n

d
e

rm
in

e
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 
h

a
v
e

 i
n

 a
n

 a
re

a
.

W
it
h

 c
o

n
s
ta

n
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 b
u

d
g
e

ts
, 

fi
n

d
in

g
 e

x
tr

a
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
a

s
y
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
  

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 c

a
n

 o
ft

e
n

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 u

s
in

g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 f

o
r 

m
o

v
in

g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 s

e
e

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 e

v
e
n

ts
, 

fe
te

s
 a

n
d

 g
a

la
s
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 

e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 v

ia
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
. 

U
n

ti
l 
n

o
w

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
ti
v
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 N

I 
1

9
5

. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 i
n

d
ic

to
r 

a
n

d
 a

 p
re

s
c
ri

b
e

d
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 w

a
s
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 K

e
e

p
 B

ri
ta

in
 T

id
y
 t

o
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 %
 o

f 
u

n
a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 s
it
e
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

is
 h

a
s
 a

lw
a

y
s
 b

e
e

n
  

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
lim

it
e
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
o

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 u
s
e

. 
A

s
 i
t 

is
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 

re
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

c
a

lle
d

 t
h

e
 c

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

s
 s

im
ila

r 
q

u
a

lit
y
 d

a
ta

 b
u

t 
m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
. 

T
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
u

rv
e

y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
e

 %
 o

f 
a

c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

 
s
it
e

s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

le
v
e

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

a
n

d
 w

in
te

r 
m

o
n

th
s
 u

s
in

g
 a

 r
o

ta
ti
n

g
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

w
a

rd
s
. 

H
is

to
ri

c
a

lly
 L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 w
e

ll 
a

g
a

in
s
t 
o

th
e

r 
c
o

re
 c

it
y
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
to

rs
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
N

I 
1

9
5

 w
it
h

 8
6

.7
%

 o
f 

a
re

a
s
 d

e
e

m
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
. 

 T
h

e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 s
u

m
m

e
r 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
e
w

 c
le

a
n

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a

re
 t

h
a

t 
9

1
.5

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e
p

ta
b

le
 l
it
te

r 
le

v
e

ls
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

is
 q

u
a

n
ta

ti
v
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r,
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 t
o

 c
a

p
tu

re
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 f

e
e

lin
g
s
, 
c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
ie

w
s
 o

n
 h

o
w

 
lit

te
r 

fr
e

e
 t

h
e
y
 t

h
in

k
 t

h
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
 a

re
. 

T
h

is
 c

a
n

 t
h

e
n

 b
e

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 l
it
te

r 
h

o
t 

s
p

o
ts

 a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
 

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

?
  

  

O
n

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t

h
a

n
 i
t 

h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

a
s
t.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 v
ie

w
 s

h
a

re
d

 b
y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 h
a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
u

rn
e

d
 i
n

to
 d

ia
lo

g
u

e
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e

 f
in

it
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 

c
u

lm
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 b

e
in

g
 w

a
rd

 p
la

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

re
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

n
d

 a
s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
d

e
ta

il 
to

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
.

C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 1
 

C
O

M
3

Page 49



W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

E
N

E
 –

 a
 r

a
d

ic
a

l 
o

v
e

rh
a

u
l 
in

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 w
o

rk
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
2
8

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Z
o

n
e

s
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 b

e
in

g
 i
n

 I
n

n
e

r 
E

a
s
t 

s
o

m
e

 a
ls

o
 i
n

 I
n

n
e

r 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t.

 T
h

e
 r

e
s
h

a
p

e
d

 t
e
a

m
 h

a
s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 t
h

e
 

w
a

y
 i
t 

w
o

rk
s
 w

it
h

 a
 m

o
re

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 a
n

d
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 p

ro
b

le
m

 
s
o

lv
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 b
e

in
g

 t
o

 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 c

u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 s

tr
e

e
t 
s
c
e

n
e

 
is

s
u

e
s
.

S
S

E
- 

a
n

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 s
c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
th

e
ft

 i
n

 S
o

u
th

 L
e

e
d

s
 w

a
s
  

ru
n

 i
n

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

o
lic

e
. 

V
e

h
ic

le
s
 w

e
re

 s
to

p
p

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 f
ro

n
t 

g
a

te
s
 o

f 
s
c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
m

e
rc

h
a

n
ts

 i
n

 M
o

rl
e

y
 a

n
d

 B
e

e
s
to

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 p
o

lic
e

 g
iv

in
g

 o
u

r 
s
ta

ff
 

th
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 c

h
e

c
k
 w

a
s
te

 c
a

rr
ie

r 
lic

e
n

c
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
n

o
te

s
. 

T
h

e
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 1
6

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
n

o
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 7
 F

P
N

’s
 b

e
in

g
 s

e
rv

e
d

 a
n

d
 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
c
ra

p
 m

e
ta

l 
th

e
ft

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

. 
 

A
 j
o

in
t 

1
 m

o
n

th
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 w
it
h

 H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

’s
 P

ri
s
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 s

e
e

n
 6

 
p

ri
s
o

n
e

rs
 f

ro
m

 A
rm

le
y
 P

ri
s
o

n
 g

a
in

 w
o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

. 
O

v
e

rs
e

e
n

 b
y
 

s
u

p
e

rv
is

o
rs

 f
ro

m
 S

S
E

, 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 l
it
te

r 
p

ic
k
in

g
, 

re
m

o
v
in

g
 f

ly
 t

ip
p

e
d

 
w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 c

le
a

n
in

g
 g

in
n
e

ls
 t

o
 g

re
a

t 
e

ff
e

c
t.

 

W
N

W
 –

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 A
rm

le
y
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 

th
e

 W
in

d
g

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 
B

a
rd

e
n

s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

re
a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 
a

 h
o

s
t 

o
f 

e
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
g

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

t 
s
c
e

n
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

S
u

rv
e

y
s
 w

e
re

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 i
n

 g
a

rd
e

n
s
 a

n
d
 b

in
 y

a
rd

s
 t

o
 q

u
a

n
ti
fy

 t
h

e
 e

x
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
p

ro
b

le
m

 a
n

d
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

p
ro

 a
c
ti
v
e

 c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 o
f 

g
ro

t 
s
p

o
ts

. 
A

 l
it
te

r 
b

in
 

a
u

d
it
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

n
e

w
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 b
u

t 
a

ls
o

 t
h

a
t 

s
o
m

e
 b

in
s
 w

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 i
f 

re
lo

c
a

te
d

. 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
A

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 

th
e

m
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 m

a
k
e

 s
u

re
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e

. 
 

 
B

e
tt

e
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 f

u
tu

re
 p

la
n

s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 o

r 
in

s
ta

lli
n

g
 n

e
w

 r
o

a
d

 
g

u
lly

’s
.

 
T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 p
ro

c
u

ri
n

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
s
tr

e
e

t 
s
w

e
e

p
e

rs
 i
s
 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 b
y
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
n

g
 

a
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

a
y
 o

f 
le

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

 

 
A

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 S

u
p

e
rv

is
o

rs
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

  
m

e
a

n
in

g
fu

l 
s
ta

ff
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
. 

It
 i
s
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 c

re
a

te
  

th
e

 p
o

s
ts

 o
f 

 a
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 a

n
d
 C

a
s
e

 w
o

rk
 

S
u

p
e

rv
is

o
r 

in
 e

a
c
h

 l
o

c
a
lit

y
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 g

re
a

te
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 s
ta

ff
 

a
n

d
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 –

 t
h

e
 c

re
w

in
g

 u
p

 a
n

d
 s

c
h

e
d
u

lin
g

 o
f 

s
tr

e
e

t 
s
c
e

n
e
 c

le
a

n
s
in

g
 r

o
u

n
d

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

o
n

e
 o

n
 a

n
 a

d
h

o
c
 b

a
s
is

 i
n

 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

u
s
in

g
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
s
p

re
a

d
s
h
e

e
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 h

in
d

e
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 f
le

x
ib

le
 

R
M

S
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t,

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 u

s
e

r 
fr

ie
n

d
ly

. 

 
A

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

c
o
rd

 v
o

lu
m

e
s
 o

f 
d

ru
g

 p
a

ra
p

h
e

rn
a

lia
 

p
ic

k
e

d
 u

p
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

le
 t

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

rc
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 

 
s
o

 t
h

a
t 

if
 i
t 
c
o

m
e

s
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 A
L

M
O

 w
e

 c
a

n
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

re
c
h

a
rg

e
.

 
A

 s
u

it
e

 o
f 

re
p

o
rt

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 

E
N

E
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

z
o

n
e

s
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

, 
n

o
ti
c
e

s
 s

e
rv

e
d

 a
n

d
 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
. 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

E
-f

o
rm

 c
o

n
n

e
c
to

rs
 n

o
t 
b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t

im
e

 f
ra

m
e

 w
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 i
t 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 

te
a

m
s
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
ts

 t
h

e
y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

. 
O

n
c
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t

h
e

y
 w

ill
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 d

u
a

l 
e

n
te

r 
d

a
ta

 o
n

to
 S

ie
b

e
l 
a

n
d

 U
n

if
o
rm

 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 i
n

e
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
. 

 
A

s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 f
le

e
t 

b
a

s
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
a

n
y
 r

is
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

d
ie

s
e
l 
w

o
u

ld
 p

u
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
  

W
in

te
r 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 –
 t

ra
ff

ic
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
c
o

s
ts

 n
o
t 
w

e
re

 f
a

c
to

re
d

 i
n

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 s
a

fe
ly

 c
o

rd
o

n
in

g
 o

ff
 a

rt
e

ri
a

l 
ro

u
te

s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 

a
n

d
 r

e
p

a
ir

 w
o

rk
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

 

Page 50



M
e

e
ti

n
g

: 
S

a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 S

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
P

e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

 s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
b
e
lo

n
g
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

b
u
ild

s
 c

o
h
e
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

h
a
rm

o
n
io

u
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t d
iv

er
se

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
cu

ltu
ra

l p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
U

K
, i

t a
ls

o 
ho

us
es

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t a
ffl

ue
nt

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

un
tr

y,
 a

nd
 th

es
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 o
fte

n 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
co

no
m

ic
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

fa
ct

or
s 

pr
es

en
t b

ot
h 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
ci

ty
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

st
re

ng
th

en
 o

ur
 g

oo
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 r

el
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
 li

nk
s 

an
d 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ou

r 
di

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s.
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
:

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t d
iv

er
se

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
cu

ltu
ra

l p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e

U
K

. 
T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
 o

f 
ou

r 
bl

ac
k 

an
d 

m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

an
d 

ne
w

ly
 a

rr
iv

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

ar
e 

ho
w

ev
er

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
in

 t
he

 in
ne

r 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 le

ss
 a

ffl
ue

nt
 a

re
as

. 
T

hi
s 

ha
s 

cr
ea

te
d 

so
m

e 
te

ns
io

n 
in

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 

w
he

re
 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 

of
 

ne
w

 
ar

riv
al

s 
or

 
ch

an
gi

ng
 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 f

el
t 

m
or

e 
ke

en
ly

. 
W

hi
ls

t 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
pi

ct
ur

e 
is

 t
ha

t 
Le

ed
s 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 r

es
ili

en
t 

an
d 

to
le

ra
nt

, 
th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
of

 i
nt

er
cu

ltu
ra

l 
te

ns
io

ns
 in

 s
om

e 
of

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 m
us

t n
ot

 b
e 

un
de

re
st

im
at

ed
. 

T
he

 p
ic

tu
re

 n
at

io
na

lly
 is

 th
at

 te
ns

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f i
de

nt
ity

ar
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
, a

nd
 L

ee
ds

 is
 c

on
sc

io
us

 o
f s

ta
yi

ng
 a

he
ad

 o
f t

ha
t t

re
nd

.

E
ve

ry
 c

om
m

un
ity

 in
 L

ee
ds

 h
as

 it
s 

st
re

ng
th

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
re

 a
re

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

in
 

Le
ed

s 
w

he
re

 
m

ul
tip

le
 

co
nc

er
ns

 
oc

cu
r 

in
 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
lo

ca
tio

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

po
ve

rt
y,

 
un

em
pl

oy
m

en
t, 

tr
ua

nc
y 

an
d 

su
bs

ta
nc

e 
m

is
us

e.
 W

he
re

 t
he

se
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

an
d 

ot
he

rs
 a

ll 
ex

is
t 

in
 o

nc
e 

pl
ac

e 
it 

co
m

po
un

ds
 t

he
 e

ffe
ct

s 
of

 c
rim

e 
an

d 
an

ti-
so

ci
al

 b
eh

av
io

ur
, 

re
du

ce
s 

re
sp

ec
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

lim
its

 t
he

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
ct

io
n.

 

O
ur

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 m
ul

tip
le

 c
on

ce
rn

 is
 to

  f
oc

us
 o

n 
ea

rly
 

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n,
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

su
ch

  

ris
ks

, t
hr

ea
ts

 a
nd

 h
ar

m
s.

 T
he

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
fo

cu
s 

is
 o

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

w
ha

t

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 c
an

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 m

ak
e 

a 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

at
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
ve

l:

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

re
 m

os
t s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 
N

ew
ly

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 o

r 
ch

an
gi

ng
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

to
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f t
hr

ea
ts

, 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
nd

 r
eg

ul
ar

 c
ha

ng
es

 i
n 

po
pu

la
tio

n,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 w
ith

 s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 r
es

id
en

cy
, 

in
hi

bi
ts

 t
he

 f
or

m
at

io
n 

of
 s

tr
on

g,
 s

up
po

rt
iv

e 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 –
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

 lo
ok

 a
t w

ha
t s

up
po

rt
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 b
ui

ld
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 in
 th

es
e 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
, a

nd
 w

ith
 c

er
ta

in
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f i
de

nt
ity

.

O
ve

ra
ll 

pr
og

re
ss

 in
 Q

ua
rt

er
 2

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
st

ea
dy

, 
an

d 
th

er
e 

is
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 t
ha

t 
w

e 
kn

ow
 w

he
re

 a
ct

iv
ity

 n
ee

ds
 t

o 
be

 t
ar

ge
te

d 
to

 s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

is
 n

ot
ed

 a
s 

A
m

be
r 

ho
w

ev
er

, t
o 

no
te

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

ec
on

om
ic

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 in

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, a
nd

 th
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

.  

T
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

rt
e
rl
y
 W

Y
P

A
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 s
u

rv
e
y
 ~

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d

 6
,0

7
3
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
. 

T
h
e
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 w

a
s
 5

9
.3

4
%

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 6

6
.7

4
%

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 

in
 t
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 
q
u

a
rt

e
r 

(J
u

ly
 -

 S
e
p

t 
2

0
1

2
) 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 
a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 l
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 I
N

C
R

E
A

S
E

. 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 2
 

C
O

M
4

C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

Page 51



W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

  
  

 

T
he

 W
es

t Y
or

ks
hi

re
 P

ol
ic

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
su

rv
ey

 n
ot

ed
 a

 s
lig

ht
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 fe

el
 th

at
 th

ei
r 

lo
ca

l a
re

a 
is

 a
 p

la
ce

 w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
fr

om
 d

iff
er

en
t b

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 li

ve
 to

ge
th

er
 

ha
rm

on
io

us
ly

, f
ro

m
 6

9.
6%

 to
 6

5.
9%

 in
 Q

1,
 th

is
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

sl
ig

ht
ly

 to
 6

6.
74

%
 in

 Q
2 

(J
ul

y 
- 

S
ep

t 2
01

2)
. T

he
re

 a
re

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 fa
ct

or
s 

th
at

 in
flu

en
ce

 th
is

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 g

en
er

al
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 tr
en

ds
. T

he
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 h

ow
ev

er
 r

em
ai

ns
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
 b

ut
 n

ee
ds

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 b
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
if 

th
is

 r
ep

ea
ts

 fo
r 

Q
ua

rt
er

 3
.

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

T
he

Saf
er a

nd 
Str

ong
er C

om
mu

niti
es 

Boa
rd l

oo
ke

d 
at

 t
he

 is
su

es
 li

ke
ly

 t
o 

ha
ve

 a
n 

im
pa

ct
 in

 L
ee

ds
 

fr
om

 w
el

fa
re

 r
ef

or
m

 c
ha

ng
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 jo

in
 u

p 
w

or
k 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f r
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

le
av

in
g 

Le
ed

s 
pr

is
on

.

Str
ong

er 
Co

mm
uni

ties
 Pa

rtne
rsh

ip 
ha

d 
a 

fo
cu

s 
on

 
de

fin
in

g 
w

ha
t 

w
e 

ex
pe

ct
 

fr
om

 
“s

tr
on

ge
r”

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
, 

an
d 

ho
w

 t
hi

s 
w

ill
 i

nf
lu

en
ce

 t
he

 w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 i
n 

Y
ea

r 
2,

 a
nd

 h
ow

 w
e 

ca
n 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

ak
e 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 to
 d

el
iv

er
.

T
he

Saf
er L

eed
s E

xec
utiv

e b
eg

an
 w

or
k 

on
 a

 n
ew

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 ta
ck

lin
g 

st
re

et
 p

ro
st

itu
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 in
 

Q
1 

an
d 

th
is

 c
on

tin
ue

s.
 T

hi
s 

is
 a

 h
ol

is
tic

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
ar

ou
nd

 a
dd

ic
tio

n,
 h

ou
si

ng
, 

vu
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

, 
so

ci
al

 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
 e

xp
lo

ita
tio

n 
an

d 
is

 s
ta

rt
in

g 
to

 b
rin

g 
po

si
tiv

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 f

or
 t

he
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
is

.

The
 Sa

feg
uar

din
g C

om
mu

niti
es 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
fo

cu
se

d 
on

 c
om

m
un

ity
 m

ap
pi

ng
 w

or
k,

 w
hi

ch
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

“b
es

t 
gu

es
s”

 f
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 t
ar

ge
t 

th
ei

r 
w

or
k 

ba
se

d 
up

on
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 s

ou
rc

es
.  

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 w

or
k 

is
 b

ei
ng

 p
rio

rit
is

ed
 a

ro
un

d 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 f

or
 a

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 n
at

io
na

lit
ie

s 
of

 s
pe

ci
fic

 in
te

re
st

 fo
r 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 w

or
k.

T
he

Mig
rati

on 
Par

tne
rsh

ip 
ha

s 
re

m
ai

ne
d 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 a
nd

 p
re

-e
m

pt
in

g 
th

e 
lo

ca
l, 

re
gi

on
al

 a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 m
ig

ra
tio

n 
su

pp
or

t 
&

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 
It 

ha
s 

al
so

 b
eg

un
 l

oo
ki

ng
 a

t 
th

e 
gr

ow
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
 o

f d
es

tit
ut

io
n 

am
on

gs
t a

pp
ea

l r
ig

ht
s 

ex
ha

us
te

d 
as

yl
um

 s
ee

ke
rs

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
. I

t h
as

 a
ls

o 
su

pp
or

te
d 

a 
cr

os
s-

se
ct

or
 g

ro
up

 t
o 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
tr

an
sf

er
 o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

fo
r 

A
sy

lu
m

 
S

ee
ke

rs
 to

 G
4S

. 

T
he

Thi
rd S

ect
or P

artn
ers

hip
 lo

ok
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
fu

nd
in

g 
cu

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
se

ct
or

, 
an

d 
en

ga
ge

d 
on

 t
he

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 L
ee

ds
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
bu

dg
et

. 

T
he

Gy
psy

 R
om

a 
Tra

vel
ler 

Str
ate

gy 
Gro

up 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 

fin
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 
th

e 
N

ee
ds

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 f

or
 G

yp
sy

 T
ra

ve
lle

r 
an

d 
fo

r 
R

om
a 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, 
to

 b
et

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 t

he
 lo

ca
l n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 in
 L

ee
ds

. 

BM
E C

hal
len

ge 
For

um
 –

 h
as

 m
et

 tw
ic

e 
an

d 
is

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
on

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

n 
E

du
ca

tio
na

l A
tta

in
m

en
t a

nd
 J

ob
s 

an
d 

S
ki

lls
.

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

B
ud

ge
t 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

– 
H

ow
 t

he
 c

ou
nc

il 
ba

la
nc

es
 i

ts
 b

ud
ge

t 
in

 2
01

2/
13

 i
s 

im
po

rt
an

t 
to

 a
ll 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
T

he
 b

ud
ge

t 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
on

 p
eo

pl
e'

s 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

co
m

bi
ne

s 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

w
ay

s 
to

 t
ak

e 
pa

rt
 w

ith
 

w
id

es
pr

ea
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
to

 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
re

si
de

nt
s,

 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 
an

d 
in

 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

ird
 

se
ct

or
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
lre

ad
y 

en
ga

ge
d 

w
ith

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 
E

qu
al

ity
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 a

ll 
re

sp
on

se
s 

al
lo

w
s 

us
 t

o 
m

on
ito

r 
w

ho
 is

 ta
ki

ng
 p

ar
t a

nd
 ta

rg
et

 o
ut

re
ac

h 
w

or
k 

to
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

t r
is

k 
of

 u
nd

er
-r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n.

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
he

Saf
er a

nd 
Str

ong
er C

om
mu

niti
es 

Boa
rd h

av
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 lo
ok

 a
t t

he
 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f h
os

tin
g 

a 
P

ov
er

ty
 T

ru
th

 C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 L

ee
ds

 –
 a

 p
ro

po
sa

l o
n 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l s
ha

pe
 a

nd
 s

co
pe

 o
f t

he
 c

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 a

 c
ro

ss
 s

ec
to

r 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 th
e 

Le
ed

s 
In

iti
at

iv
e 

B
oa

rd
 to

 s
ee

k 
its

 s
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 b
uy

-
in

, w
ith

 a
 v

ie
w

 to
 s

ta
rt

in
g 

in
 e

ar
ly

 2
01

3.
 

T
he

Str
ong

er C
om

mu
niti

es 
Par

tne
rsh

ip h
as

 b
ee

n 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 Th

ird 
Sec

tor
 

Par
tne

rsh
ip t

o 
be

tte
r 

co
-o

rd
in

at
e 

on
 a

ge
nd

as
 a

nd
 s

ta
rt

ed
 to

 lo
ok

 a
t d

el
iv

er
y 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 in
 L

ee
ds

. 

T
he

Mig
rati

on 
Par

tne
rsh

ip l
oo

ke
d 

in
to

 th
e 

gr
ow

in
g 

is
su

e 
of

 d
es

tit
ut

io
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
te

d 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

hi
rd

 s
ec

to
r 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 a
cr

os
s 

W
es

t Y
or

ks
hi

re
 to

 ta
ck

le
 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

. 

Dat
a D

eve
lop

me
nt 

T
he

 L
ee

ds
 C

iti
ze

n’
s 

P
an

el
 r

es
po

nd
ed

 to
 th

e 
H

ea
lth

y 
an

d 
S

tr
on

ge
r 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 s
ur

ve
y,

 
w

hi
ch

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 a

na
ly

se
d.

 It
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 s

om
e 

vi
ta

l s
ta

tis
tic

al
 in

si
gh

t 

H
ow

 fa
r 

pe
op

le
 fe

el
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f d
iff

er
en

t g
ro

up
s 

ge
t o

n 
in

 th
ei

r 
ar

ea
, a

nd
 h

ow
 th

is
 h

as
 

ch
an

ge
d 

in
 th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r 

F
ee

lin
gs

 o
f p

er
so

na
l s

af
et

y 

A
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 a

nd
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

fe
el

in
gs

 o
f i

nv
ol

ve
m

en
t 

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t t
he

 fi
nd

in
gs

 a
nd

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

ar
ea

 
co

m
m

itt
ee

s,
 a

ge
/e

th
ni

c/
ge

nd
er

/d
is

ab
ili

ty
 e

tc
, a

nd
 w

er
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 d
at

a 
ex

is
ts

, a
ny

 tr
en

ds
 o

ve
r 

tim
e 

– 
th

at
 m

ig
ht

 w
an

t f
ur

th
er

 q
ua

nt
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
al

ita
tiv

e 
an

al
ys

is
. 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

E
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ar

e 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 t

o 
en

ga
ge

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 w
he

re
 a

ct
io

n 
is

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 in

flu
en

ce
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 is
 a

 k
ey

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
in

 t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
co

no
m

ic
 c

lim
at

e.
 A

 
na

tio
na

l i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

in
te

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 te
ns

io
n 

is
 n

ot
ed

 a
s 

a 
ris

k 
fo

r 
Le

ed
s,

 a
nd

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
le

ar
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 o

f o
th

er
 c

iti
es

 w
he

re
 c

iv
ic

 u
nr

es
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
or

e 
ev

id
en

t t
ha

n 
in

 L
ee

ds
.

Page 52



2012/13 Directorate Scorecard Reporting Period :

Environment & Neighbourhoods Directorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Executive Portfolio

Deliver the Safer and Stronger Board 

City Priority Plan, with a focus on 

reducing burglary levels, increasing 

confidence in relation to Anti Social 

Behaviour and improving cleanliness

Performance is strong across the range of priorities being delivered by the Safer/Stronger 

Board, including consistent reductions in Domestic Burglary, good performance on ASB 

service delivery and maintaining public confidence, and improving conditions and confidence 

in relation to environmental cleanliness.

Green N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Create the environment for effective 

partnership working

The Safer Stronger partnership remains strong and effective in tackling its priorities and has 

in place a number of sub-boards driving delivery of specific actions.  The positive impact of 

these partnership arrangements is evidenced through strong performance across the range 

of priorities being tackled.

Green N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Ensure that local neighbourhoods and 

central commercial areas are clean

The way in which we measure performance has changed but our new baseline position 

reflects good performance.  On the whole, confidence in the service has increased and there 

is a recognition that the service is more accessible and accountable than it has been in the 

past.  This is a view shared by Members and residents as complaints have turned into 

dialogue and we are continuing to adopt strategies that respond to specific needs and issues 

in localities.

Green

Reduce percentage of streets with 

unacceptable levels of litter 

(ANNUAL)

5% 

improvement 

by March 2013

86.0% 

2011/12

91.5% (new 

indicator)
Environment

Improve the quality of Leeds’ parks 

The service is using the information gathered through surveys to calculate the performance 

indicator and target investment and direct site developments to address the issues identified.  

This approach has led to continuous improvement since the indicator was introduced in 2004 

and we are on track to meet this year's target. Site inspections are currently being 

undertaking to inform the latest performance data against this target and the results will be 

reported as part of the service's annual report to Area Committees in December. 

Green

Percentage of parks and 

countryside sites assessed 

internally that meet the Green 

Flag criteria (ANNUAL) 

29.4% Environment

Improve Recycling rates

YTD to August 2012 shows recycling at 44% (comparable figure in 11/12 was 41%) so 

improvements continue to be made. Expected outturn performance in 12/13 is currently 

projected to be around 41%, up from 37.4% last year. The pilot of fortnightly collections of 

recyclables which should improve future recycling rates has been delayed into 13/14. In 

addition, we are currently waiting to hear back from DCLG whether the Food Waste bid has 

been successful.

Amber
Increase percentage waste 

recycled
45% 43.0%

44.0% at 

August 

2012

Environment

Improve refuse service reliability

The residual waste collection performance (54.88) is now exceeding the best performance 

achieved over recent years and is approaching the service's quality standard. Garden waste 

(181.03) and SORT (180.36) collections are achieving better than the historical average 

performance, but remain a focus for further improvement. This, combined with the best ever 

recycling rate for the city at 48% for July, and 44% in August, demonstrates a continuing 

performance improvement trend.  Current performance also needs to be set against the 

delivery of an increasingly complex service for Leeds residents. For example, there are 2 

million collections per month, when compared to  2007/08, which include around a further  

37,000 households receiving SORT collections including the more difficult to access 

properties and a further  85,000 garden households receiving waste collections and 9,000 

properties with food waste collections.

Amber
Reduce number of missed bins 

per 100,000 collected

50 (quality 

standard)
106.49

100.79 (see 

comment-

ary for 

breakdown 

by bin type)

Environment

Reduce levels of domestic burglary
In the 12 months to the end of September, there were 5,938 recorded offences, down 36% 

(3276 fewer victims). 
Green Reduce number of burglaries 7056

1266 (12 

mnth total 

6816 

down 

24.8%)

1265 (12 

mnth total 

5,938 down 

36%)

Neighbourhoods, 

Planning and Support 

Services

Annually Reported

Quarter 2 2012/13

P
age 53



OtherDirectorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 

Progress
Supporting Measures Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Executive Portfolio

Area Working - Next Steps review is underway to report to the Executive Board in December 

2012 setting out recommendations against a series of objectives aimed at improving the 

effectiveness of locality working, in particular, Area Committees.  The review is considering: 

powers, responsibilities and delegations; community and partner enggement; local 

partnership arrangements; geography and boundaries; funding; and links between the 

Executive Board and Area Committees.The Way Forward on Community Engagement 

project sets out a range of improvement actions to develop further the council's approach to 

community engagements and consultation by developing support, guidance, training and co-

ordination of engagement activities across the councul; improving the effectiveness of the 

corporate consultation group; clarifying the roles of local elected members and the locality 

teams. Major consultations such as the citizen's panel and budget consultation surveys are 

reported at a area committee level

Initial survey results capturing public views on involvement in their local community have 

been received - further analysis is planned over the next few months with a more detailed 

update provided at Q3.

Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Executive Portfolio

N/A

21.2 

(15,933) 

12 mnth 

total 

67,051 

down 

9.8%

21.2 

(15,387) 12 

mnth total 

54,314 

down 

13.86%

Neighbourhoods, 

Planning and Support 

Services

Neighbourhoods, 

Planning and Support 

Services

Deliver an approach to locality working 

with improved community engagement 

and more local decision making 

(Customer Access and Performance)

Reduce the overall crime rate (per 1000 population)

Other Relevent Indicator

Amber

Increase percentage of people 

who feel they are involved in their 

local community

N/A

A great deal - 5.5%

To some extent - 33.1%

Not very much - 40.5%

Not at all - 20.5%

Don't know - 0.4%

P
age 54



 

 

Report of Chief Officer Parks and Countryside 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 10th December 2012 

Subject: Co-ordination Between Parks and Countryside and Environmental Action 
Services 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The management of the streetscene grounds maintenance contract has transferred to 
Parks and Countryside enabling closer co-ordination of weed spraying activities with 
the grounds maintenance contract, a consistent approach to monitoring, along with an 
holistic approach to horticultural land management. 

2. Traffic management arrangements have been co-ordinated to minimise disruption and 
costs associated with closing part of the carriageway for horticultural and cleansing 
operations. 

3. Litter collection is co-ordinated in the vicinity of community parks, and as part of normal 
operations site based gardeners undertake an initial litter pick of the park which is 
being expanded to include some areas outside the curtiledge of the park.  Conversely, 
street cleansing staff now assist with emptying litter bins in parks on a weekend when 
parks staff are not always present. 

4. There are occasions when events either planned or weather related can mean that 
more work is required afterwards.  More recently, co-ordinated working has resulted in 
a more comprehensive approach with staff from both services working together, 
including following the Leeds Asian Mela, West Indian Carnival, Woodhouse Moor and 
Wetherby Wilderness Car Park. 

5. Work is underway to map all maintainable ginnels and establish work requirements to 
draw up an annual co-ordinated work schedule.  Work is already co-ordinated to 

 Report author:  M. Kinnaird 

Tel:  3957400 

Agenda Item 10

Page 55



 

 

undertake weed-spraying where the locality team have already cut back vegetation, 
and removed detritus from the surface of the path.  A new initiative is for Parks and 
Countryside to apply a detergent to loosen moss from pavements combined with the 
locality team using path sweepers to clean the pavements once treatment is complete. 

6. Locality Managers have led on consultation and worked with Parks and Countryside on 
developing proposals around dog control orders in Leeds.  Parks and Countryside have 
also worked with Ward Members, enforcement officers, PCSOs and the police to 
undertake education and enable better intelligence gathering on dog fouling. 

7. The Parks and Countryside service has a number of welfare facilities and yard space 
available in most community parks distributed throughout the city which has provided 
an opportunity for the locality based teams to use these facilities for staff welfare 
provision and as operational bases. 

Recommendations 

8. That members note the content of the report. 

Page 56



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report considers the progress made in co-ordinating Environmental Action 
Services with Parks and Countryside, along with further plans to improve the way 
services are co-ordinated in a way that utilises resources more effectively and 
improves the level of service achieved. 

2 Background information 

2.1 Parks and Countryside manage almost 4,000 hectares of parks and green space.  
This includes 7 major parks, 62 community parks and 95 recreation grounds, and 
155 hectares of local green space, which include 144 playgrounds and 500 sports 
facilities ranging from skateboard parks to golf courses, and which play host to 
700 events annually.  The service also manage a nursery which produces over 4 
million bedding plants each year, 97 allotment sites, 812km of PROW, and 156 
nature conservation sites, as well as 22 cemeteries and 3 crematoria. 

2.2 Environmental Action services are primarily delivered through 3 locality 
management teams accountable to Area Committees on a service level 
agreement basis.  Activities include litter bin emptying, litter picking, street 
sweeping, and leaf clearing, along with enforcement activity that includes dog 
fouling, fly tipping, overgrown vegetation and litter.  The teams are also 
responsible for proactive local environmental promotions.  The management of 
the  grounds maintenance contract was also carried out as part of Environmental 
Action Services up until the end of August. 

2.3  A decision was taken in May to transfer the Parks and Countryside service from 
City Development to Environment and Neighbourhoods.  The motivation behind 
this move was to enable closer working between services that impact on the local 
environment.  This arrangement took effect from 1st September and combining 
services under one Directorate has enabled a greater focus on ways to improve 
co-ordination now that Parks and Countryside are part of an holistic approach to 
managing environmental services. 

3  Main issues 

3.1 Streetscene Grounds Maintenance 

3.1.1 The management of the streetscene grounds maintenance contract has 
transferred to Parks and Countryside, effective from the 1st September.  This is 
enabling integration of staff into an existing team which already has considerable 
knowledge and expertise of horticultural maintenance as well as the management 
and delivery of grounds maintenance contracts.  Proposals are under way for a 
partial restructure of the service which will formalise this arrangement in a more 
effective way by enabling closer co-ordination of weed spraying activities with the 
grounds maintenance contract, a consistent approach to monitoring, along with an 
holistic approach to horticultural land management.   

3.1.2 A review of the delivery approach for land currently either managed by Parks and 
Countryside or the contractor is being undertaken and considered for alternative 

Page 57



 

 

arrangements in 2013.  This will provide even greater clarity for the public and 
service providers on what constitutes verges and incidental land around dwellings 
compared to land primarily for recreation or conservation. 

3.1.3 The specification in the contract outlines requirements to deal with litter present 
on land maintained by ensuring that it is collected and removed prior to scheduled 
works.  This is particularly important at the start of the grass cutting season, but is 
also a responsibility before each cut.  It is also a requirement as part of other 
operations such as hedge cutting, shrub or rose pruning.  Consideration is being 
given to expand this remit to cover adjacent hard surfaces where applicable in co-
ordination with street cleansing activities. 

3.2 Traffic Management 

3.2.1 It should be noted that traffic management arrangements have been co-ordinated 
to minimise disruption and costs associated with closing part of the carriageway 
for horticultural and cleansing operations.  Examples of this are at Stairfoot Lane 
and Holt Lane where Highways met the cost of road closure for highways 
operations, and Parks and Countryside staff took the opportunity to cut back 
overgrowing vegetation.  Similarly, co-ordination between Locality Teams and the 
streetscene grounds maintenance contractor took place at Pudsey bypass where 
sweeping and gulley cleansing operations followed grass cutting. 

3.3 Litter and Waste Issues 

3.3.1  Work is underway to co-ordinate litter collection in the vicinity of community parks 
where a site-based gardener is present.  As part of their normal operations a site 
based gardener will undertake an initial litter pick of the park.  This is being 
expanded to include some areas outside the curtiledge of the park.  Conversely, 
street cleansing staff now assist with emptying litter bins in parks on a weekend 
when parks staff are not always present.  Examples of where this is taking place 
are as follows: 

• Cross Flatts Park:  Parks and Countryside to include the emptying of the bin 
on the entrance to Maud Avenue and include the highways bins on other 
entrances to the park.  Locality Team  to commence litter picking to the 
perimeter of the park and empty bins in the park close to the entrances at the 
weekend.  In addition, a bollard blocking the entrance to a ginnel bordering the 
park has been removed enabling a path sweeper to clean, along with the 
removal of shrubs and trees on Maud Avenue to prevent litter accumulations. 

• Scatcherd Park: Parks and Countryside to empty the bins on the roadside 
from Morley Leisure Centre down to the bottom of the hill during the week.  
Locality Team  to empty the bins and litter pick the perimeter of the park at the 
weekend. 

• Manston Park: Parks and Countryside to commence emptying litter bins 
outside the shops on Pendas Way and Church Lane during the week.  Locality 
Team to empty bins between the entrance to Manston Park (Manston 
Gardens) and up to and including the playground. 

Page 58



 

 

3.3.2 With regard to green waste management, Parks and Countryside have now 
decommissioned the ‘five acre’ recycling facility at Red Hall.  Green waste is now 
handled at a number of more locally based facilities as part of a corporate waste 
contract, thus enabling a more efficient approach with less travel involved in 
disposal. 

3.3.3 Community and ‘in bloom’ groups (of which there are now around 60) can now 
use household waste sites for items of waste removed from relevant sites, for 
what might otherwise be treated as commercial waste.  This provides a simple, 
yet effective way of supporting these groups who aim to improve the local 
environment by volunteering. 

3.3.4 During the Christmas period in 2010, 32 staff from Parks and Countryside helped 
support refuse collection teams.  This year, a request has been made for 
additional drivers and operatives out of normal hours, and it is anticipated that 
staff from Parks and Countryside will be able to assist. 

3.4 Events 

3.4.1 There are occasions when events either planned or weather related can mean 
that more work is required afterwards.  More recently, co-ordinated working has 
resulted in a more comprehensive approach with staff from both services working 
together.  Examples of this include the following: 

• Leeds Asian Mela held at Roundhay Park whereby Parks and Countryside 
staff worked with the Locality Team to carry out a joint operation to ensure the 
areas inside and outside the park were cleansed following the event.   

• The Leeds West Indian Carnival where Parks and Countryside staff picked up 
litter outside the entrances of Potternewton Park following the event. 

• Woodhouse Moor has particular challenges over the summer, and both 
services have worked together to remove litter and empty litter bins on busy 
days.   

• The Wetherby Wilderness car park was flooded in September and Parks and 
Countryside staff worked to clear logs and wood following which the Locality 
Team sent in a street sweeper to restore the car park surface. 

3.5 Weed and Moss Control 

3.5.1 Parks and Countryside have responded quickly when weed spraying requests 
have been referred for ginnels where the locality team have already cut back 
vegetation, and removed detritus from the surface of the path.  For example this 
approach has worked well on some of the problem ginnels in Alwoodley and 
Moortown.  A recent initiative to respond to local priorities in Outer North West 
and Outer West, is for Parks and Countryside to apply a detergent to loosen moss 
from pavements combined with the locality team using path sweepers to clean the 
pavements once treatment is complete. 

Page 59



 

 

3.5.2 Work is now underway to identify and map all maintainable ginnels and work 
requirements to draw up an annual co-ordinated work schedule including 
vegetation cut backs, sweeping and litter removal, weed and moss treatment. 

3.6 Dog Control 

3.6.1 Locality Managers have led on consultation and worked with Parks and 
Countryside on developing proposals around dog control orders in Leeds.  This 
has enabled dog exclusion orders in playgrounds, the bird garden at Lotherton, 
Tropical World/Canal Gardens, and Home Farm.  Dogs are to be kept on a lead at 
all times in cemeteries, crematoria and closed church yards and ornamental 
gardens (at Horsforth Hall Park, Golden Acre, Temple Newsam and Roundhay).  
Funding for signage has been identified to inform the public.    

3.6.2 Parks and Countryside have also worked with Ward Members, enforcement 
officers, PCSOs and the police to enable better intelligence gathering.  Site based 
gardeners in parks have been briefed on the process for reporting and recording 
incidents.  Where Parks and Countryside front line staff witness people allowing 
their dogs to foul, they now have direct contact with relevant enforcement officers 
who can be informed immediately.   

3.6.3 In addition Parks and Countryside have committed where there is a permanent 
site presence to carry out the following: 

• Periodically hand out leaflets to dog walkers that set out owners 
responsibilities. 

• Approach offending dog owners and ask that they pick up any fouling by their 
dog. If they refuse, staff have been instructed to avoid confrontation but note a 
description for intelligence purposes. 

• Report persistent offenders to Dog Wardens. 

• Inform dog owners that normal litter bins can be used for bagged dog faeces. 
 

3.6.4 An example of joint working on a specific site is Calverley Park.  A joint education 
day was held over the summer where dog fouling enforcement staff joined 
together with Parks and Countryside ParksWatch staff, PCSO’s to engage with 
the public.  School children from Calverley Parkside Primary School were also 
involved as they use the park, and posters designed by the children were 
attached to lamp posts in and around the park.  Leaflets were handed out along 
with bags to collect dog faeces.   

3.6.5 Following this education awareness day, there were a number of enforcement 
patrols in and out of normal office hours within the park and surrounding 
neighbourhood by the WNW Locality Team and Dog Wardens.  Information packs 
were also posted through residents letter boxes in the immediate vicinity of the 
park on actions they can take (i.e. report to the appropriate services) to assist 
enforcement to tackle this problem. 

 

 

Page 60



 

 

3.7 Shared Facilities 

3.7.1 A further practical example of where co-ordinated working has taken place is in 
relation to sharing facilities.  The Parks and Countryside service has a number of 
welfare facilities and yard space available in most community parks distributed 
throughout the city.  This has provided an opportunity for the locality based teams 
to use these facilities for staff welfare provision and as operational bases.   

3.7.2 For example, facilities have been shared at Dartmouth Park, Springhead Park, 
Barley Hill Recreation Ground and Hunslet Moor to enable street sweepers etc to 
operate more locally rather than using a central base.  This allows the cleansing 
staff to operate more efficiently in terms of productive time and transport savings. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1  Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 This report is in response to a request from the Safer and Stronger Communities 
Scrutiny Board for discussion at the board meeting in December. 

4.2  Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1  The equality and diversity, cohesion and integration considerations have been 
addressed as part of the procurement arrangements where reference is made to 
specific contracts, and through the Council’s adopted decision making protocols 
that impact on individual service areas. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report draws attention to co-ordinated working that demonstrates a 
contribution towards the following priorities contained in the City Priority Plan: 

• Best city for communities:  

o effectively tackle and reduce anti-social behaviour in our communities. 

o Ensure that local neighbourhoods are clean. 

• Best city to live: 

o Enable growth of the city whilst protecting the distinctive green 
character of the city. 

4.3.2 The report highlights the contribution to the following Council Business Plan 
priorities: 

• Improve the quality of Leeds’ parks 

• Create the environment for effective partnership working 

• Deliver the Safer and Stronger Communities City Priority Plan, with a focus on 
reducing burglary levels, increasing confidence in relation to Anti Social 
Behaviour and improving cleanliness 

• Improve refuse service reliability 

• Work effectively at a local level 

Page 61



 

 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 This report seeks to highlight how co-ordination of environmental services has led 
to improvements in the effectiveness, consistency and efficiency of service 
activities and to minimise disruption to the public. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report or access to information 
restrictions. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 There are no significant risks identified in this report. 

5 Recommendations 

5.1 That members note the content of the report. 

6 Background documents1  

6.1 None. 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 62



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 10th December 2012 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. A draft work schedule is attached as appendix 1.  The work schedule has been 
provisionally completed pending on going discussions with the Board.  The work 
schedule will be subject to change throughout the municipal year. 

 
2. Also attached as appendix 2 are the minutes of Executive Board on 7th November 

2012. 
 
Recommendations 
 
3.    Members are asked to: 
 

a) Consider the draft work schedule and make amendments as appropriate.  
b) Note the Executive Board minutes 

 

Background papers1 

4. None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  2474553 

Agenda Item 11

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review June July August 
 

Grounds Maintenance Contract 
 

  Overview of progress 
WG 1/8/12 @ 10.30 am 
 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

Briefings 
 
 

Equality Improvement Priorities 
SB 18/06/12 @ 10 am 

Parks and Countryside – overview of the 
service 
SB 30/07/12 @ 10 am 
 

 

Crime and Disorder Committee 
work. 
 

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny in Leeds 
SB 18/06/12 @ 10 am 
 
 

Development of the Leeds Community 
Safety Business Plan 
WG session 1 – 17/7/12 @ 11 am 

Development of the Leeds 
Community Safety Business Plan 
WG session 2 – 14/8/12 @ 10 am 

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

 Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Formal Response 
SB 30/07/12 @ 10 am 
 
Phase 2 Dog Control Orders 
SB 30/07/12 @ 10 am 

 

Performance Monitoring 
 

Quarter 4 performance report 
SB 18/06/12 @ 10 am 
 

  

 
 

P
age 65



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review September October November 
 

Strengthening the Council’s 
relationship with local Parish 
and Town Councils. 

 Agreeing terms of reference for the 
review. 
SB 22/10/12 @ 10 am 
 

Session 1 of the review 
26/11/12 @ 10.30 am 

Grounds Maintenance Contract 
 

Reporting on progress (summary of working 
group meeting) 
SB 10/9/12 @ 10  am 
 

Identifying areas for improvement 
WG 02/10/12 @ 11 am 
 
Reporting on progress (summary of 
working group meeting) 
SB 22/10/12 @ 10 am  
 

Considering the Board’s draft final 
report 
SB 12/11/12 @ 10 am 

Waste Management/ Recycling  Update on progress and determining areas 
for further review 
SB 10/09/12 @ 10 am 
 

Scoping terms of reference for the 
review. 
WG 15/10/12 @ 2 pm 

Agreeing terms of reference for the 
review. 
WG 12/11/12 @ 10 am 

West Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 
Authority - Proposals for 
Changes to Emergency Cover 
in West Yorkshire 

 Consideration of the proposals set out 
within the WYFRS consultation 
document. 
SB 22/10/12 @ 10 am 

Agreeing the Board’s submission to 
the consultation process. 
SB 12/11/12 @ 10 am 

Briefings 
 

  Provision of Bereavement Services 
SB 12/11/12 @ 10 am 
 
Provision of Allotments in Leeds 
SB 22/10/12 @ 10 am 

Crime and Disorder Committee 
work. 
 

Development of the Leeds Community 
Safety Plan – comments from Scrutiny 
SB 10/09/12 @ 10 am 

  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 

 
 

 Fuel Poverty Inquiry 
SB 12/11/12 @ 10 am 

Performance Monitoring 
 

Quarter 1 performance report 
SB 10/09/12 @ 10 am 

  

P
age 66



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review December January February 

Strengthening the Council’s 
relationship with local Parish 
and Town Councils. 
 

Session 2 of the review 
WG 12/12/12 @ 9.45 am 
 
 
 

Summary note of sessions 1 & 2 
SB 14/01/13 @ 10 am 
 

Session 3 of the review  
WG 10/01/13 @ 11.15 am 
 

Session 4 of the review 
WG 21/01/13 @ 10 am 
 

Session 5 – Annual Parish and Town 
Council Seminar 31/01/13 @ 6.30 pm 

Summary note of session 3 
SB 11/02/13 @ 10 am 
 
Session 6 of the review 
WG 12/02/13 @ 10 am 

Waste Management/ Recycling  Session 1 of the review 
WG 3/12/12 @ 10 am 
 
Session 2 of the review 
WG 13/12/12 @ 2 pm 
 

Summary note of sessions 1 & 2 
SB 14/01/13 @ 10 am 
 

Session 3 of the review 
WG 03/01/13 @ 2.30 pm 
 

Summary note of session 3 
SB 11/02/13 @ 10 am 
 

Session 4 – public listening 
exercises (dates TBC) 
Area 1 – 05/02/13 @ 10 am 
Area 1 – 06/02/13 @ 2 pm 
Area 3 – 07/02/13 @ 10 am 

Co-ordination of services 
between Parks and Countryside 
and Environmental Services 

Consideration of the potential opportunities 
and barriers for improving the co-ordination 
of services - SB 10/12/12 @ 10 am 

  

Briefings Financial Health Monitoring/Initial 2013/14 
budget proposals 
SB 10/12/12 @ 10 am 

Initial 2013/14 budget proposals – draft 
comments from the Scrutiny Board 
SB 14/01/13 @ 10 am 

 

Crime and Disorder Committee 
work. 
 

Safer Leeds Community Safety Business 
Plan – Update 
SB 10/12/12 @ 10 am 

 Integration of the domestic noise 
nuisance service in the Leeds Anti-
Social Behaviour Team 
SB 11/02/13 @ 10 am  

Recommendation Tracking  
 

Phase 2 Dog Control Orders 
SB 14/01/13 @ 10 am 
 

New Grounds Maintenance Contract 
SB 14/01/13 @ 10 am 

 

Performance Monitoring Quarter 2 performance - SB 10/12/12   

P
age 67



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review March April May 

Strengthening the Council’s 
relationship with local Parish 
and Town Councils. 
 

 Agree the Board’s final report 
SB 15/04/13 @ 10 am 

 

Waste Management/ Recycling  
 

Session 5 of the review 
WG 04/03/13 @ 10 am 

Agree the Board’s final report 
SB 15/04/13 @ 10 am 
 

 

Assessment of the Safer and 
Stronger Communities Board 

To undertake an annual assessment of the 
Partnership Board 
SB 11/03/13 @ 10 am 
 

  

Briefings 
 

   

Crime and Disorder Committee 
work. 
 

   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

 Draft Safer Leeds Crime and Disorder 
Strategy 
SB 15/04/13 @ 10 am 

 

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

  

Performance Monitoring 
 
 

Quarter 3 performance report 
SB 11/03/13 @ 10 am 
 

  

 

P
age 68



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

����������	
��
�
�

��
���
���������
���	���������
�

���������
�

�

	����
���������������	�����������

� �

	����
����� ������!��
��
	��"�#
��
	��
$�#�
�	��%�&�'����&�!
�����	��(�)��������
�	��&�*���
	�

�
� � � �

	����
����$�
�����+�"
�����
���!������
�
�

��� ����� ���!��!"�!#��
,	��������������
��-.��
������	��������
	�!���	��$�
���
���%
����/0��
�

	����
����$�
�����'����	�������
�����	�����������	��
	��������
���

	����
��
(���������'�
������
��������������
�
������
������	�����
�����������	�/�
�

���� �$!"%���&'(#")� (&�*��(�� �+!��$,+�� (&�('��-!��#!���)&.����+ ,��
���
/��
�0�1���������
���������.��
������
�����������	���
��	������
�
	��������
	�
�������
��
'�	��������
���������	��������	���������.�����
	�
������

	�����������������������	����'�
������	��
���
�������
��	�����
����
���	�������
������	��
���
��������
�����	��������������������
�������
�����
'���������	��������'

�����������
�
����
������
���.������	�
�����
	��
�
�����	���������
��
'�23�
�
4�5� (���	��.�0��
��������
�������������
��	�!�	
���6
/�����
	��������������


��(������ �
� 7	�
�����
	�$�
���
���%
�����/8405��	��
	� ������

	���
����� ���� �	�
�����
	� �
	���	��� '����	� ���� (���	��.� �������� �
� ����
��	�	�����
���
��	������������
����������
��������
	���	��
�������

	���/�
1�����	�
�����
	����	
���
�������������������
����������
�
�������������
��
�	�
�����
	� ����� �	� �������� 
�� ������	� �
���	���� �	�� ���������/� � 7�� ���
�
	���������������	���������	�
�����
	�'���
����	������

���
	���
�
	��
	��
�����
	�� �
�� ���� ����
���� 
�� ���� ��
�����9��	�� ���	� ��� ��� 	
�� �	� ����
�
������	��������
������
���������	�
�����
	����������
�	���	�����/��(��
�������
�
	�������� ����� ���� �������� 
�� �
��� �	�
�����
	� '

��� 
�� '

��� ���
��������
����:
����������

	���;���
����������	���������	�������
	��
�
�����
�������� ���	�����
	�� �	� ����� ��
��������� �
��������� 
�� 
����� ��������
��
��������'

����������������
��	�
�����
	���

������	��
����	��������

�� �
	��������
	� '����� ���� ��
��� ����������� �
� ���� �

	���/� � 7�� ���
�
	�������� ����� '������ ������ ���� ��� �� �
����� �	������� �	� �����
�
����
�
��� 
�� ����� �	�
�����
	� '���� ��� �
������� ���������� ��
�� ���� &�	��
%���������
��
'�	���
������
	�
�� ��������	�����
	��	���
	��<
�	���� ����
�
����� �	������� �	� ���	���	�	�� ���� �.�����
	� 

�'������ ���� �
�����
�	��������	������
��	��������	�
�����
	����������
�	���	�����/���

�
4�5� (���	��.����
��������
�������������
��	�!�	
���6
/�����
	��������������


��(�������
�7	�
�����
	�$�
���
���%
�����/8405��	��
	�������

	���
����������	�
�����
	��
	���	���'����	�����(���	��.����������
�����
��	�	�����
���
��	������������
����������
�����
���	����	��
������

Page 69



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�

	���/��7������
	���������������	���������	�
�����
	�'���
����	���
���

���
	���
�
	��	��
�����
	���
����������
����
��������
�����9��	��
���	�������	
���	������
������	��������
������
���������	�
�����
	���������
�
�	���	�����/�7������
	�������������'����������������������
������	�������
�	������
�
�����
���
��������	�
�����
	�'��������
�������������������
������
&�	��%���������
��
'�	���
������
	�
����������	�����
	��	��
�
	��<
�	���������
������	��������	����	���	�	�������.�����
	�


�'�����������
������	��������	������
��	��������	�
�����
	����������
�	��
�	�����/��

�
4�5� (���	��.�8��
��������
�������������
��	�!�	
���6
/���0�
	��������������


��(������ �
� 7	�
�����
	�$�
���
���%
�����/8405��	��
	� ������

	���
����� ���� �	�
�����
	� �
	���	��� '����	� ���� (���	��.� �������� �
� ����
��	�	�����
���
��	������������
����������
��������
	���	��
�������

	���/�
1�����	�
�����
	����	
���
�������������������
����������
�
�������������
��
�	�
�����
	� ����� �	� �������� 
�� ������	� �
���	���� �	�� ���������/� � 7�� ���
�
	���������������	���������	�
�����
	�'���
����	������

���
	���
�
	��
	��
�����
	�� �
�� ���� ����
���� 
�� ���� ��
�����9��	�� ���	� ��� ��� 	
�� �	� ����
�
������	��������
������
���������	�
�����
	����������
�	���	�����/��(��
�������
�
	�������� ����� ���� �������� 
�� �
��� �	�
�����
	� '

��� 
�� '

��� ���
��������
����:
����������

	���;���
����������	���������	�������
	��
�
�����
�������� ���	�����
	�� �	� ����� ��
��������� �
��������� 
�� 
����� ��������
��
��������'

����������������
��	�
�����
	���

������	��
����	��������

�� �
	��������
	� '����� ���� ��
��� ����������� �
� ���� �

	���/� 7�� ���
�
	�������� ����� '������ ������ ���� ��� �� �
����� �	������� �	� �����
�
��/�
!
��� 
�� ����� �	�
�����
	� '���� ��� �
������� ���������� ��
�� ���� &�	��
%���������
��
'�	���
������
	�
�� ��������	�����
	��	���
	��<
�	���� ����
�
����� �	������� �	� ���	���	�	�� ���� �.�����
	� 

�'������ ���� �
�����
�	��������	������
��	��������	�
�����
	����������
�	���	�����/���

�
���� /)�!���!"���

1�����'����	
��
������������������
'���������'���	
������������
���
���������	��
-.��
����� 
����!���������������������
�����
���
�
��	����������	������
������������
���	���
��"��
��	�� 
����4"
����	�����-�
	
����	���
��
��5�
�	��"��
��	�� 
����4=�������	���������	���	��(�
���"
���������5���
��
'�	��
�
��� 
����;��
	��������
	�
������&�>��
���"���������0�����	������'�����
����������
��������
�
�������	�����
�����&�>��
���"��������$��3"
������
	�
�������	�����
��	�
������������
	�
���������
������������������/�(����
���
�
�
��	����
	�'����
�����
	����������������
�����	���������?��@&�>��
���
"�������2�$��3"
������
	����	�����
���
	�
�����
	;��4!�	
���6
/���A�������5/�
�

���� 
!,+)#)� (&�('�
 �,+(�)�+!��!,�& )#1�)&.�
�-!#��&�!#!�����
1���������-.��
���������������	��	��������	���������
��������������������	���
�
���	���������8���	��������@"
������	�"�����������
���	��$�
�
�����+�
,�����;���������
�������
	�������	��'���������	���
��
	��
������
���	�����
	��
�	�
������	����������
���	����
�
�����4!�	
���6
/�����������5/��
�

��2� � &��!���
���
/��
�0�1����������	
����
�����������	�������
	��?���)��
������������
����
����������
���������
��/�

Page 70



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�
���
��������
��
��
�����3�����
���
�

��4� ��)�!�('��-!�� �1��!%(#��������
1���(������	��������-.��
�������
��
����(�������	��$���
���	����
��������
�����
���'����������	�����������
	���		
���"�����
��������������
����
��&����/�
7	�������
	��
�����������	������������	�����
��������	����
������"�����
������
������
�
��	��������
����	�����
�����
�
���������-.��
����� 
����
���
���	���
��
����

	�������������"�����
������������
�
��	�����������������
���������	��
	��B���6
�����������/��
�
���
/��
�0��
4�5� 1�����������
���������	����
�������
��������"�����
�����������%��
���

��������	
���/�
�
4�5� 1����!�������
��>
����

	����������
���	�����
�������������"�����
��

���������%��
��������������������	��
	��B���6
�����������/�
�

��5� �)6 &7�/!!.��)�/8	��3# !&.+1�� �1��
1���(������	��������-.��
�����4�
��
����(������C�$���
���	��5��
����������
���
����������	������'
���
	�������	��
�������	�����
	����
�����������$�����
!
��
	��
	�����������>
����

	����
	��B���!�����������������	������&�����
������	�����������.
����	�����	���	����4&# 15��
��
	���/�7	�������
	������
���
���

���	�������	���
����
�
�����'�����'

����
��
�������'
������	��

	�������	��
������&������	�&# 1�>���	����������	��'��������
����
�	�����
�����
	����
��
	����������&# 1��
��
	����������
���������;���
�����/�
�
!�������'���
��������'������	���
����
�
�����'����	������
�����������
���
'�����'���������������
�
��	��&���������	�&# 1�>���	����������	��
������������������
���	���
����������������'�
������	���	��
������	��'���
��	��
�
������
��
	�����/�=
'�������	�����
���	���������
����!�����������
���������������'�����������	
�����
������'
���'������	��
	�������	�
	�����
������������
��
�����
��	�����#���D
�������	������������	����������'

���	
�����
�
��
������
���	����
�
�����'�����'

��������������	���
�����������
	��
��
�	�������
�������������	���/��
�
���
/��
�0�1����������
�
��������	�������'����	������
�����������
����'�����
'�����
��
���'
����
������&������	�&# 1�>���	���������������������	�
���	��������
�:�����
������
���	��������������������	���������	���
������'
���
�	���������
����
��	�����#���D
�����/�
�

��9� �(, )+�3�&.��!%+),!"!&���,-!"!��
1���������
��
��%��

������
�������������
���'������

��������
�����
������
�����
���	���	���������	����
	�
�����
�����������
��'��������������	���

��	���
	��	��'�����'

���������
������
��
�����

	��������������������	��
��
�
����	��$�	��
	����	�(��������0/�
�
%���
	��	���
��������������<
�����
�����������
�������� 
������������������
���
'

������������
��	�
����������������	�������
	����
�������'�����������������

������"
�����>
	��'�������������	������
���������	�������
��������'

���

Page 71



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�	����

���
�����	������������
������
����������	���������	�������
	��
	��	��
�������'�����'

�����������������
��#
���	��	�/��
�
7	��
	��
��
	��������������<
������������������������
�'������
	��������
��
-.��
����� 
�����
�#
���	��	�������	������������

	��������
�
�����
	��	��
����	����	����	���������
��������������
�����A9���E�
	'����/�
�
���
/��
�0��
4�5� 1���������
	��	�����
������
��

	��������
�����
������
�����
����

'��������������	���������/�
�
4�5� 1����������
�
���������������

���	���'����	������
�����������
�������

����
�����'������	���������������������	���
���������
��
'�	���
������
�
	�
�����
	/�

���
4�5� 1�������
���������
�������
���������
����� 
�����	���	
�������0�

�������	������

��
����
�������
	�
�����
	��.��������

���	�	����
�
�����

	��
	��	�����
����
	���
���������

�������	���
��������	�����������	��
��
����	���	�
������
����
������������	������	��
���������
�������
����	��������������	����	��/���

�
4�5� 1�����������������
�'������
	��������
��-.��
����� 
�����
�#
���	��	��

�����	������������

	��������
�
�����
	��	������	����	����	���������
��
������������
�����A9���E�
	'����/�

�
���� 
 �,#!� (&)#1��(�� &7��)1"!&���(+ ,1��

1���������
��
��%��

������
�������������
�����
����	���	�
�����
	�
	�����
�������
������=

��	�� �	��������	����'�����'���������
�����
��
����	�
�
���������
��(��������0���
�������'������������
������������
	���#
���	��	��
�
	��	��'�����'

�������	��
�
�����	��'�������������
��
���	��������	�
��

����
���	�����������	��/�7	�������
	���������
����
	�������������������
����	���
��������
	����
	��	���
��
����	���	��
��������
�
�����
������
������
��������	���	���'����
���
��
����
����
�����

����������������������	���/�
�
1��� 
����	
�������������
	�'
���'������������	�
	�������	��������(&!)��
�	���������
����	�	���������������������
�����������
	�'
���'�����'����
����

	�������	��	�����'����������������������������
���'

������������
��	�
���
���������
����
������������'

����������������
��	������������
���3���	���
�
��
���	��'
��/���
�
!������������������������	������������	��
	�������
����
	�
���
��
����	��
�������'��������������������	��.�����	������	��'����
�������.��������
����
�.�����	������������

	�����	��
��������	�������������
���
���������
������	��
���'�����<
������������
������'
������
	�������	��
��
	��
���
�������	��
�����������	����
���	�����

����/�7	�������
	��������	���'���������
�����
��������	��'������	�����������
	�������	����
���������
����'�����'�������	��
�.�����	������
��������
����������������������	�����	�����
����������
	���	��
�������
��
���	������/��
�

Page 72



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�������������
�������
�
������������	��-�������!�������	�
�����	���	�����
����������
���������'�����<
������������
����������
���
	���������	���������
��
�����
���������
��
����
	�
������-�������!��������	�
����/��
�
���
/��
�0��
4�5� 1���������.��������������
��������	��������	������
��	���	�
��������

��
��(��������0�����	
���/�
�
4�5� 1���������
������
�������'�����	����������	��
����������
	����=

��	��

$����	����
�����09�8��������
���/�
�
4�5� 1�����
������'
������
	�������	��
��
	��
����������	����������
������

��
����
	�
���
��
����	�������������	����
���	�����

������'���������
�.�����	������������

	�����	��
��������	�������������
���
������
���
���/�

�
4�5� 1�����
����������
���
	���������	���������
�������
���������
��
����
	�
��

����-�������!�������'�
�'

�������	�
������	���������������
����/��
�

��:� �#!)��#1��)&)7!"!&����#)�!71��%.)�!�����;�2��
1���������
��
��%��

������
�������������
�����
����	���������'��	��
������

������1����
���!�	�����	��"���������
������9���0��'�����'�������
�������
-.��
����� 
����
	������>���
��������/�
�
���
/��
�01��������
������
	�����1����
���!�	�����	���
��
'�	���	��
�	������	������������
������9���0����	
���/�
�

���� 3 &)&, )+��!)+�-��(& �(# &7�����;�2�*��(&�-�9��!%(#���
1���������
��
��%��

������
�������������
��������	��

�������

	���;��
��
:��������	�	�������������
����
	��
������9���0�����������������������/�
�
%���
	��	���
�������������	<
��������� 
��������������
�������	�
�����
	�
�������	�������
���	���
����
	��	���������
���	�
������������	����������
���		�	���	���
����	������/��
�
���
/��
�0�1����������
:��������	�	������
����
	�
�������
��
�������������.�
�
	����
��������	�	�������������	
���/�
�

���� �)% �)+��#(7#)""!��%.)�!�����*���5��
1���������
��
��%��

������
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�����
��	�	������
����
	��
������9���0/�7	�������
	���������
���

���	��������
���	��
�
����
	��������	�������������

������������������
������
����������'�����
�������	�
����������
��@(����;�����
���
�@#���	;���	����
���������	��
��
���������
������
����
�����������
	��
�����:
����������'����	�����
��
������/��1������
������
��	��
������������������
���	����
	��������	��
����@>
������	��&�����7	������	��$�
������;/�
�
!�������'���
��������
���
������������	��
��=���������	���
��
��
�������
>
������	��&�������
������/��
�

Page 73



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�
���
/��
�0�
4�5� 1����������������
����
	�
	�����#�	�����>
	���	��=

��	��%���	
��

(��

	������������
�����������	
���/�
��
4�5� 1�����������	�����
������������
������@(����;��
�����@#���	;�

��
����������������

��'����	������
	�0/0�
�������
�����������
������
	
���/�

�
4�5� 1��������
���
��F?EA�����
����������	��
��=���������	���	�����9�0��	��

���09�8��������
�����
��
��
�������@>
������	��&�����$�
������;��
��
'�����F�BA�����'��������	:�������	�
���������������
�������'��	�
�
	��������	��������������/�

�
4�5� 1��������
�����������	��
������	:����
	��	�
���������������
�������
��

F0�A�������
��"��E��
	����
��
	���	�
������
��
��
�������6#1�������/�
�
4�5� 1��������
�����������	��
��������
����
	�
��F0A��������
��������������

�
	��	��	�����������
���
������
�����
����
	��	��������
�����
����
'
����
	��
�����
�������/��

�
4�5� 1����������	
����������
	������
�������
�����&
'���(���
	�"������


�����������	
��
	������<
������	�����������
�����������	��
����������
���	�������
�����
������
�������
���
���������"�����/�

�
4�5� 1��������
�����������	��
��������
����
	�
��FA��������
������-�
	
����

7	�����������������'������
�������'������FA������������������
��
�
	����
��
	�'������
������
����F�����������
�������	��
�� 
	���

��/��

�

���/
��������
�������
�
���
�

���� 
 �%(�)+�('�� ,-"(&.��(�#���(��!+��/���<��(��(#6�- #!��(�� &7�'(#�
)''(#.)�+!�-(�� &7�#!.!=!+(%"!&�>��
1���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
��������	��

������
���
	��
�
	���������
�������������
���	��
������%����
	���

���������	��'�����
�

��������
�����
�����
���
������������	�
������
�����������������������
���	��

�������
���	����������
���
�����0?�
	����
������������
��
����
	���B�
��
'�����'

��������
������
	�����%����
	���

�������/�
�
>
��
'�	���
	��������
	�
��(���	��.�0��
������
�����������
���������	��������
�.�����
	����(�������
�7	�
�����
	�$�
���
���%
�����/8405��'�����'���
�
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������'���
�
���
/��
�0�1�������������
��%����
	���

����
�*
��������=

��	������������
���	�������
	��������
	��������������'����	��.���������	��.�0��
�����
�
�����������
�����������
�����	�
������
�����������������������
���	��
����
	�'����
��������

��	���������
��0?�
	����
������������
��
����
	/��
�
�
�

Page 74



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�
���� �(=!#! 7&���#!!��
!=!+(%"!&���#(%(�)+��*��%.)�!��

>
�������
�!�	
���6
/�?E��A���"�������������������������
��
�������
�����
���	���
�������������
�����
����	���	�
������
	�����
����������������	�
����
	����
������������	��
�������
���	����
��� ��	�����"
������	�"�������
�	��'��������
��

��������
�����
���
������'�����������
���	��������������
�����
�����	��
��
������������	�������'����	������.���������	��.��
�����
�
�����������
�����
�����������
���	��
��$�
���/�
�
%���
	��	���
���!�����;���	<
��������'����������������������������
���	��

�����
���������������	����������"
������	�"�����������������	��������
������
'������
��������
	����

���
���
���������!�������	�<
����
	�'�����
������
�	�
�����
	�
	��������������
����������	������������
���	�/�
�
>
��
'�	���
	��������
	�
��(���	��.����
������
�����������
���������	��������
�.�����
	����(�������
�7	�
�����
	�$�
���
���%
�����/8405��'�����'���
�
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������'���
�
���
/��
�0�
4�5� 1�����������
���	����	��
�������=�����
��1�����'�������������
�����

���

���	���'����	������.���������	��.��
������
�����������
�������
����
���/�

�
4�5� 1�����	��.��
��������������	���
��������
��
����.��
	����
	���
��������

���	�����
�����
��
�������	�
������
����
'��������������
������	��������
�
�
	��
��������������
�
��	����
	/�

�
4�5� 1�����
��
�������������������
�����������
��
������������
���	���	�


������
�	��
������������	������������=�����
��1����/�
�

��2� 
 �%(�)+�('���#)�'(#.��(�#����,-((+�/)&!���-)%!+��++!#�(&��(��& �1�
�(�� &7����(, )� (&�'(#��!.!=!+(%"!&�>��
1���������
��
������������
���	���
�������������
��������	��

������
���
	��
�
	���������
�������
�
���
������"�����
����

��������������

��	����������	��
'������

��������
�����
����������
����
��"�����
����

����
�,	����=

��	��
(��
�����
	��	�
������
���������������������
���	��
����	�'����
��������

��	��
�������
	�����������������������
	�������AA��	��
���/��
�
>
��
'�	���
	��������
	�
��(���	��.�8��
������
�����������
���������	��������
�.�����
	����(�������
�7	�
�����
	�$�
���
���%
�����/8405��'�����'���
�
	���������	�����������������
	��
��
	�
�����������	������'���
�
���
/��
�0�
4�5� 1������������
����
��"�����
����

����
�,	����=

��	��(��
�����
	�������

��������	�������
	��������
	��	��
	�����������

���	���'����	�����
�.���������	��.��
������
�����������
����������
������	�
������
�
����������������������
���	��
����	�'����
��������

��	���������
�
������	��
��0��.�������

���������	����
������
	�������AA��	��

���/�

�

Page 75



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

4�5� 1����������	
������	�������
�����
�
��
	�4�5���
��������������
��
��
-	���
	��	���	��6�����

��

���'�����
���	�������	����	��������
����	��
������"�����
����

��������������

��	��������/�

�
���8�	
���


����/�����8���
�����
������������
�

��4� �!�%(&�!��(�
!%��)� (&�*����-��!%�!"�!#�������(�&, +��!!� &7�*�/!!.��
�(��-�3 7-��'(#�?(����
1���������
��
��-	���
	��	���	��6�����

��

����
�������������
����	�
����
	����
��������
����
	������	�����
��

	����
	������"�����������������
����@&�����*

���>�����>
���
��;�
���	�����
	��'�����'����	�������
	��
�����
�

��	�����
���
	�����������

	����
�����	���������/�
�
 ��'���
���	��	��
�
���
	��
��������
�������� 
��������������	�
�����
	�
�������	����������
	�����	������	��
�����
������
��������

��	����
����
	��	�
�����������
�������'������������
	�����	������	��
�����
����������

��	��������/��
�
���
/��
�0�1���������
	��	���
�������
�����������
������	
���/��
�

��5� /
3���(#!���#)�!71�*��#!*���" �� (&��-)&7!��'(#��(&��+�)� (&��
>
�������
�!�	
���6
/��G?�������>���
��������������������
��
�������
�����
���	���
�������������
��������	��	��������
�
�������3�
������
	�
���	�����
�����$
�������
	�������
������&����������
���	��>����'
���4&�>5�
�
���"���������	���������
���	��	��"
����	��������%��
����'��������������	�
��
�������
	�
�����
	��.�������
	�������	/�7	�������
	���������
����

��������
 
���;���������	���
��
����������
�
��	����
��
����

	�����
�������
��
����
��
�
���������
�����	���
������
	��
�����"���������
��"������
���	����	��	��
�.���	���
	/��
�
$��
���
����������	���-.��
����� 
����!���������������������
�����
��
�
�
��	����������	������������������
���	���
��"��
��	�� 
����4"
����	�����
-�
	
����	���
��
��5��	��"��
��	�� 
����4=�������	���������	���	��(�
���
"
���������5���
��
'�	���
��� 
����;��
	��������
	�
������&�>��
���"�������/�
7	�������
	�� 
����!��������������
��������������������	�������������	��
�
��������
�
�������	�����
�����&�>��
���"��������$��3"
������
	��������
�
�������'�����	�
������������
	�
���������
������������������/��
�
7	������	��	���������
��������-.��
�����!�������
��6�����

��

����$��		�	��
�	��"
��
���"�������������������������
��������
�
�������	����'���������
���	�����
�������
� 
����!����������
���
����������	���	�����
���
�
����

	���
���������	���	����������������������
��
	�'���	
�������
������'����	�����
$��3"
������
	��������
�
��	�������@1
'	���	���;/���
�
%���
	��	���
�������������	<
������������	���������
�����������@�
����	�������;�
�	������������
	�����'��������"������������������'����������
�
	�����
���
���	���
���	�
��	��������
�
��������
���	���'�����
����	����/�7	�
������
	������ 
����'����	�
������������"
����	��������(����������������	�

	�������	��	���������
������"����������	�
������
��	�
���������	���
�����
���	���'�����'����������������������
������"��������'�����	���	��'����
�����

	���;���
����	��������	������/��

Page 76



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�
!�����������
����������������
��
��
��
	�����
��-�������!�������	�
�����	��
�
��	������"�������;���
�������
	���	�����'���������������������������������
���	���������

��

��������
������
��	�
�������������
����������	���'���
���
������'��	��	�
��	��������
������	������
	�
�����
	�'���
	�������	��
'���������
��
��	������"���������
�'���/���
�
 
����!����������	��������
����
���
���������	�
������
������'
������������

	�������	����

��

���������������
	�
������&�>��
���"���������
�
��	���
�
�������'��������-�������!�������'�
������
	����
�����
�������
����/��
�
7	��
	��
��
	������������-.��
��������������������������

��	��
���
������
�
���"����������	������������������	�����
�����������
���	���
��
	�����
�
'
����	�����	�������'���������

	�����	��
��	���
�'����'�����������	�������
����/�
7	�������
	������������-.��
��������
��������
���	���'������������	������
�������	���������
���	���
���	�
��	��������
�
��������
���	���'����
�
����	�����������������������������	������'
������	��
	�������	���

	������
���������
������
��������	������
��
��/���
�
���
/��
�0�
4�5� 1�����������3�
������
	����	�����
�����$
�������
	�������
�������
���

"��������������������'����	������
�����������
����	������	�����������
�
����������	����������
���������
���
����������	���	�������������������
��
�
���������������������	���	������������
��
	����	
�������
�������	�
����$��3"
������
	������������@1
'	���	���;���������
������
�������
'���������
����	�����������
���4����	�
�5/�

�
4�5� 1�����

	����������
���	�����
�����
�������$
�������
	��������
���

"���������	�������
����	�����������
����
�������
��
����
���
������
	��
�
����"���������
��"������
���	����	��	���.���	���
	��
��
�	���
�"����
	�
���
������$��		�	���	���
��
��
���$
�������(������8/�

�
4�5� 1��������
�����������	��
����
����������
���
���������	����
	���
����

��
������
	��������3�
������
	����	������	��������	���
������
�������	����
	���������������
���������
�����"���������
��"������������
���������$
�������
	��������
���"������������
���������
���	����	��	��
�.���	���
	/�

�
4,	����������
����
	��
���

	����$�
���
���%
����E/A���

	����
��#
��
	�
��<
���������
�������
�������������������	�����
���
��	��
	�����������
	��
����������
�'����	��������	
��5�
�
41������
�
��
	������������
�'����	��������	
���'����	
������������
�������7	�����
���������
���	��$��	��
�
��	��'������	�
��
����������&�>��
���"���������
��������
������ 
���������	��$
�����>����'
��/�1�����
��������
��������
�������	���
	�
���
�������������������������
��

	������	���	��'��������
�

	���;�� 
������	��$
�����>����'
���$�
���
���%
���5�
�
�
�

Page 77



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

��9� �,#�� &1��&@� #1� &�(��''(#.)�+!��(�� &7��1��# =)�!�
!=!+(%!#���
>
�������
�!�	
���6
/�0B���B����
�������������������
��
������������
���	���	��
����������
��
��-	���
	��	���	��6�����

��

����
����������:
�	�����
���
����
	��	���
��������
���	����
	��
�������
�����"��
��	�� 
����
4%���	�����
	5���
��
'�	������7	<
����
	�������	��������"��
��	�� 
�����	�
�
(��
�������=

��	�����$������������
����/�
�
%���
	��	���
�������������	<
�����
����������
����������!�������	�<
����
	�
'�����
�������	�
�����
	�
	�������
��������'������������	��������
�����
�������
�

��	����
����

�����������������	�&������	�
������
����������	�/���
�
���
/��
�0�1������������
	�����
�����"��
��	�� 
���;�����
���	����
	���
�������

��'����	������
	�0�
�������
�����������
�������������/�
�

���� /!!.����%%(#� &7��!(%+!��#(7#)""!��
1���������
��
��-	���
	��	���	��6�����

��

����
�������������
���
��
����	���	�
������
	�����&�����"
��
���	��$�
����$�
���������
�
���	��

�
	���������	���������	�����
�����
��������
	��	��
��������
������������
�
	��	��'����	������
��������
������;�����	�����
����	�������������
���
���
��������
�
	����������	��	�����������
�������

��	���
��
�������������
����
��	���
������	����

��/�
�
!�������������������������
���	���
������'
���'������
	��	
����
����

	�������	���������
������&�����"
��
���	��$�
����$�
���������	������
�
���������������������
�
	�����<
������
����
���;�������/�
�
���
/��
�0�1����������
�������������	�����	���������������	���
������
&�����"
��
���	��$�
����$�
�����������	
���/�
�
���/
���<�����������
�

��:� �&&�)+��." �� (&���(�&.�������
1���������
��
���������	;��"���������
�������������
�����
����	��������������
�	�
�����
	�
	����

���������
	���	�
�%������
	�*�����*����?��	�����
��	�
�
�
	�
��"��

���
��"�������������/�7	�������
	���������
����
	������������
�������
���������	�������	��������
������
3
���	���
	�
��7	3*����1��	�������
'�����'���������
�����
��
����	�
��
������
�����0����������
���
������	�'�
(������
	���
���'�����������	�
���������	�>���
��������/�
�
%���
	��	���
�������������	<
������������!�������'������
������'�����
������
�	�
�����
	�
	�����'�����	�'���������������	������
:�����
	�������	��	�
���������
	��
�������
����
��	���	��
�
���
	�
��	�'����������
	�����	����	����
�������	��
������
�/�
�
1��� 
�������
�	
���������
���	���
����
	��������	����������	�������������	��

���	�����������'
���	����

��'������������	��������'�����
	������	�����
���
�	���������
��������	������<
�����	��/�
�
���
/��
�0�1���������	�
�����
	�
	������		
����������
	��

	�����������
���������'����	������
�����������
�������	
������	��
��	�23�

Page 78



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

•� 1��� �����	����� 
�� ���������
	�� �
�� ������� �	� "��������� ����� '�����
���� �������������	���'���
�������'���B8/�H��'����GA/�H����	��
�������

	��
���������������������������	���I�

•� 1��� ���
��	�� 	
����� 
�� �������� �
�� ���
	����� ���

�� ������� �	�� �	�
����� ���������
	��'���� �	� �	������� �	� ���� 	
����� 
�� �������� �������I�
�	��

•� 1����
	��	
�	���
������
������
	��	�����������
	�������/�
�

���� 
!� 7&�)&.��(����!%(#��'(#��)����((#��!,�#!��- +.#!&<���("!��
>
�������
�!�	
���6
/�AG����	���
������G������������
���������	;��"��������
�
�������������
���'������

��������
�����	���������
��������
�
�����
���
�������'�������������
���	��
������	�'�-����!

��"��
����������	;��
=
��/�
�
%���
	��	���
�������������	<
�����
��������
	����

���
���
���������!�������	�
<
����
	��	������������	�������!�������'������������	���	���������
������
������������	�
�������

	��'��	���������	���
��������	��������	����
������
�����
���	���'

������
������������/�
�
���
/��
�0�
4�5� 1������������������
�
������
������	�'�-����!

��"��
����������	;��

=
�������

���	���'����	������
�����������
�����������
���/�
��
4�5� 1����F���AA����������	:�������	�
���������������
������/�
��
4�5� 1������
��������.��	���
���
��F���AA��������
�����������������

	
������AE�G9���9��������
��
�����/�
�
4�5� 1�����.��	���
���
��F0G?�E�����
�����������������	
�����

�AE�G9�)!9�����
�������

�������	������
���	��'
�������
��
�����/�
�

���� /!!.���)'!7�)#. &7��- +.#!&<��	()#.�*��&&�)+��!%(#��(&��-!�
�''!,� =!&!���('��)'!7�)#. &7��##)&7!"!&���'(#��- +.#!&�)&.��(�&7�
�!(%+!� &�/!!.���
1���������
��
���������	;��"���������
�������������
���'���������������������
��
���������	������������	�����

�������&�����"����
����	���������	� 
����
4&"� 5��
�����
��������
����	���������	�����������	�&����/�
�
��	��=�����7	����	��	��������
������&�����"����
����	���������	� 
����'���
�	�����	��	��/�"�����
�������	��	��
�
���
	��
��������
������������������������
������������	����
������	������
	�����
������
���<
�	��<
����
	������������
���� 
���/�
�
!����������	��������������
������&�����"����
����	���������	� 
�����
������
���
�����'
�������
	��	
�����
�
	���������'����������	�������
���������
������
�
��������������	���������
�������
����	�������������	�&����/�1������
	��
������
	�����'�����'��������
��	�����'��	�����&�����"����
����	���������	�
 
�����	�������������	;��1�
��� 
����'�����������������
'������������������
�
���������
�������������
���!��������	������������-.��
����������������

Page 79



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	����	���������������������������

�

�����������'

������	
��
������	����	������������	��������������
��
��
�����
����	���������	�'

��������	����������
����/�
�
���
/��
�0��
4�5� 1���������
	��	���
������&"� �(		
���%��
����
������9�������
�������

'���������
���	���������
��	�����������	������	
���/�
�
4�5� 1��������������	�����
������9���0��������������'����	������
��������

���
�����	��
��	����
��������������������������	;��1�
��� 
��������
	
���/�

�
/���������
��A�//��
�

���� 
!+ =!# &7��"%+(1"!&��)&.�	�� &!���
%%(#��& � !���-#(�7-��-!�
�(�&, +<��%#(,�#!"!&���
1���������
��
������������
���	���	������������
��
��%��

������
����������
:
�	�����
��������	��

����
�
������������	�������	��
�
���
	�
���	��.��������
�����
�
�������	��
��
	�
������
���	���	���������
�������
	��'����	������

	����
�
	�������'������������
��
�������
	��������������������	�F����������	��'�����
����

��������
'	��
�
���������
����������
���
���
	��/�
�
%���
	��	���
�!������;��	<
����������� 
�������������������	�����
������
�	����������
�����
	��
������	�
������
��	�
�����������'�������
���	��������������
�	�����
��
��	�
��������������
�
�����
	���������
��
��F��������'���
����
������/�(�������
�������'�����<
������������
���������
����'�����
��������
�
��
�
��������	�������	��'��	�����
���������	�
������
���
�����!�������'����
����
��
��
	�����
��
	��
����������
���	���
�������	��������/�
�
���
/��
�0��
4�5� 1�������� 
���;���
��
����������	��
����
������
��-���
���	���	��

"������
�������
	���
�����
	���������	��
	�������'������������
��
������
�
	���������
����F����������	��'�������������
'	��
�
���������
�������
���
���
���
	��/�

�
4�5� 1�����
���������
��������
���������
��
�
��� 
���������	�������	��

'��	�����
���������	�
������
���
�����!�������'��������
��
��
	�����
�
�
	��
����������
���	���
�������	��������/�

�
�
�

����
3���	/�����
���� G1=�6)J-! -%������
�
/����
����3
����//����

3��/�8�	/��
�����
���� �E1=�6)J-! -%������
�
4"��
��	��"
��
���'����	
�����������
���
���	����������������	������/����/�/�
	�
�G���6
�����������5�
�
�
�

Page 80


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 12 November 2012
	7 Safer Leeds Community Safety Business Plan
	item 7 - appendix 1 - SL Business Plan Final Nov 2012
	item 7 - Appendix 2 - comments from scrutiny Sept 2012

	8 2012/13 Quarter 2 Performance Report
	Appendix 1 Safer and Stronger Performance Reports
	Appendix 2 Safer and Stronger Communities Directorate Scorecard

	10 Co-ordination between Parks and Countryside and Environmental Action Services
	11 Work Schedule
	appendix 1 - work schedule
	appendix 2 - 7th-Nov-2012 Executive Board mins


